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• Significant Financial Indicators For Last Five Years
('( in lakhs)

Years ended 31st March

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Income 19,103 25,303 28,134 31,199 34,638

Operating Profit 3,089 4,532 2,786 3,021 2,574

ProfitAfter Tax 1,762 2,580 1,175 1,082 887

Net Worth 7,631 8,790 9,960 10,559 11,247

Borrowed Funds 4,042 7,628 9,027 8,498 6,722

FixedAssets (Gross) 9,929 14,370 18,443 19,360 20,140

Net CurrentAssets 3,704 5,422 1,174 755 500

BookValue Per Share (~) 505 659 747 792 844

Earning Per Share (~) 132.16 192.91 87.79 81.20 66.51

Dividend (%) 230 330 150 160 112.50

Ratios:

Debt Equity 0.34 0.61 0.75 0.66 0.47

Operating Profit To Sales 17% 19% 10% 10% 8%

Interest Coverage 17 13 4 5 6
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CIN : L25191GJ1974PLC002555
Registered Office: Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar - 393 002 Dis!. Bharuch, Gujara!.

Tel No.: 02267082500/2600, Fax: 022 67082599
e-mail id : investor.relations@grpweb.com, website:www.grpweb.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the FORTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of GRP LIMITED will be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar - 393 002, Dis!. Bharuch, Gujarat State on Monday, 27th July,
2015 at 12.30p.m. totransactthe following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. a) To consider and adoptthe audited financial statement of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the Reports of
the Board ofDirectors and Auditors thereon.

b) To consider and adopt the audited consolidated financial statement olthe company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year2014-15.

3. To appoint a director in place of Harsh R. Gandhi, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himselfforre-appointment.

4. To reappoint M/s.A.B.Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors of the company as Auditors, who shall hold
office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General meeting and to authorize
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Special Business:

5. To consider and ilthoughtfit, to pass with or without modification, the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Sm!. Nayna R. Gandhi (DIN:00166499), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect
from 30th May, 2015 by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 161 olthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and who holds office as
such upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that she is eligible for appointment and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, from a Member proposing her candidature
for the office ofDireclor, be and is hereby appointed as a Director olthe Company, liable to retire by rotation."

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with orwithout modification(s), the following as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), read
with Schedule Volthe Companies Act, 2013 and subject to such sanctions as may be necessary, the consent of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Harsh R. Gandhi (DIN:00133091), as a Whole-time Direclorofthe Company deSignated as
an "Executive Director" for a period of three years effective from 16th June, 2015, on the terms and conditions of appointment and
remuneration as set out in the agreement to be entered into between the company and Harsh R. Gandhi and provided in the
explanatory statement annexed to the notice.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors olthe company be and is hereby authorized to vary 1 increase the remuneration
as aforesaid to the extent the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 1or the Board of Directors may consider appropriate,
provided however, that the remuneration payable to Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director shall be within the limits set out in that behalf
in the said Act including Schedule V to the Act or any amendments thereto or any modifications or statutory re-enactment(s) thereof
and 1or any Rules or Regulations framed thereunder, and the terms of the said agreement shall be suitably modified to give effect to
such variation or increase, as the case may be."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the currency of the tenure of Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, where in any financial year,
the company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the company do pay to Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, such
remuneration which is in accordance with the conditions specified in Schedule V of the Act, or any statutory modification(s) or re­
enactment thereof."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THATthe Board of Directors otthe Company be and is hereby authorized to execute agreements and other
documents and take such steps expedient or necessary to give effect tothe above resolutions."
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NOTES:

a. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
memberofthe Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office not less than FORTY­
EIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by
appropriate resolutions I authority, as applicable. Member I Proxies should bring the duly filled attendance slip enclosed herewith to
attend the meeting. The proxy holder shall prove his Iher identity at the time of attending the meeting.

b. The Register of Members and Transfer Books olthe company will be closed from Tuesday, 21st July, 2015 to Monday 27th July, 2015,
both days inclusive.

c. lithe dividend as recommended by the Board ofDirectors is approved attheAnnual General Meeting, payment of such dividend will be
made credited I dispatched within 30 days from 27th July, 2015.

i) To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held in dematerialised form as per the data as may be made available by the National
Securities Depository Limited and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited as olthe close of business hours on 20th July, 2015.

ii) To all members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transfers in respect of transfer requests lodged
with the Company on or before the close of business hours on 20th July, 2015.

d. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details, National
Electronic Clearing Service, Electronic Clearing Service, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of
name and e-mail address etc., to their Depository Participant. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be
automatically reflected in the Company's records which will help the Company and the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents,
Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. (UCS) to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to intimate such changes to UCS.

e. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialised form to eliminate all
risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or UCS for assistance
in this regard.

f. Members holding physical shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send to the Company or UCS the
details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holding in one folio. A consolidated share certificate will
be returned to such Members after making requisite changes thereon.

g. In case ofjoint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

h. The unclaimed dividend up to the financial year ended 31st March, 1994 have been transferred to the General RevenueAccount olthe
Central Government pursuant to Section 205A (5) of the Companies Act, 1956. Members, who have not encashed their dividend
warrants up to the financial year ended 31st March, 1994 are requested to claim the same from the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at
Ahmedabad.

Pursuant to Section 205Aand 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, any dividend remaining unclaimed with the Company on the expiry of
7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unclaimed I unpaid account, will be transferred to the Investors Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Central Government. Accordingly, unclaimed dividends for the financial year ended 31st March,
1995 to 31st March, 2007 and unclaimed interim dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2008 have been transferred to the
said fund. Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrant(s) so far, for the final dividend for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2008 and for the interim and final dividends for subsequent financial years, are requested to make their claims to the Company
orto UCS. Itmay be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF as above, no claim shall lie againstthe IEPF or the
Company in respect of any amounts which were unclaimed for a period of seven years from the dates that they first become due for
payment and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

j. As required by Clause 49 olthe Listing Agreement, brief profile olthe Directors proposed to be appointed I re-appointed at the annual
general meeting is given below:
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Name of the Director Harsh R. Gandhi Smt. Nayna R. Gandhi
Date of birth 17th July, 1977 4th October, 1951
Date of appointment 16th June, 2009 30th May, 2015
Experience in specific Varied experience of more than 14 Experience of more than 22 years as
Functional areas years in corporate management. director in other companies.

Qualification Science graduate from Purdue Diploma in Home Science
University, USA.

Directorship held in other public Grip Polymers Ltd. Grip Polymers Ltd.
companies (excluding GRP Limited)

Memberships / Chairmanship of Member of Corporate Social Nil
committees of all pubic companies Responsibility Committee and

Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of GRP Ltd.

No. of shares held in the company 57,535 44,105

k. Electronic copy of the following documents: i) Annual Report for the financial year 2014-15 ii) Notice of the 41st Annual General
meetingolthe company inter alia indicating the processand mannerof e-voting iii)Attendance slip and proxyform for the 41stAnnual
Generalmeeting,are beingsent by email to all the memberswhoseemail IDsare registeredwith the company / depositoryparticipants
for communicationpurposes, unless any member has requestedfor a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered
their email address,physicalcopy of all the aforesaid documents is beingsent bythe permittedmode.

I. Noticeolthe 41stAnnual General meeting, attendance slip, proxyform and the annual report for the financial year2014-15will also be
available on thewebsite of the companywww.grpweb.com. Routemapand prominent landmark for easy locationof the venue of this
meeting isattachedseparately and the same isalso hostedon thewebsite olthe company.

m. All documentsreferred to in the accompanying noticeand the explanatory statement shall be available for inspectionat the registered
office of the company atAnkleshwar during normal business hours (9amto 5 pm) on all working days except SaturdaysandSundays,
till thedate oltheAnnual GeneralMeeting.

n. Voting through electronic means:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and clause 358 of the listing agreement, the companyhas provided to
the members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 41stAnnual General meeting
(AGM)by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting the votes by the
members using e-voting system from a place other than the venue of the AGM (remote e-voting) will be provided by National
SecuritiesDepositoryLtd. (NSDL).

ii. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at!heAGM and the members attending the meetingwho have
notcasttheirvote by remote e-voting shall havethe option to exercise their rightto vote atthe meeting through ballotpaper.

iii. Memberswho have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to theAGM may also attend theAGM but shall not be entitled to cast
their voteagain.

iv. Remotee-voting periodcommences on 24th July,2015 (9 am)andends on 26th July, 2015 (5 pm). Duringthis period,membersof
the company,as on the cut-off date of 20th July,2015,maycast their vote by remotee-voting. The remotee-votingmoduleshall be
disabled by NSDLfor voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

v. The processand mannerof remote e-voting areas under:

I. In case a member receives an email from NSDL (formemberswhose email IDs are registered with the company / depository
participants) :

a) Open email and open PDF file, viz: "GRP Ltd. remotee-voting.pdf with your client IDor folio No. as password.The said PDF
file containsyour user IDand password / PINfor remotee-voting. Pleasenotethatthe password isan initial password.

b) Launch internet browser bytyping the following URL:https:/Iwww.evoting.nsdl.com
c) Clickonshareholder login
d) Putuser IDand password as initial password / PINnoted instep (a)above.Click login.
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e) Password change menu appears. Change the password / PIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8 digits
characters or combination thereof. Note new password. Do not share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keepyour password confidential.

f) Homepageof remote e-voting opens. Clickon remotee-voting :Active VotingCycles.
g) Select "REVEN"ofGRP Ltd.
h) Nowyou are ready for remote e-voting asCastVote pageopens.
i) Castyourvote by selectingappropriate optionand clickon "Submit"and also "Confirm"when prompted.
j) Uponconfirmation, the message "VoteCastSuccessfully"will bedisplayed.
k) Onceyouhavevotedon resolution, youwill not beallowedto modifyyour vote.
I) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF,NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPGformat) of

the relevant board resolutions / authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through email toshah_cr@yahoo.co.in with a copy mark to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

II. In case a member receives physical copy of the notice of AGM (for members whose email IDs are not registered with the
company/ depository participants or requesting physicalcopies):

a) Initial password is providedas below/ althe bottomolthe attendanceslipfortheAGM:
REVEN(Remote e-voting Event Number) USER10 PASSWORD/PIN

b) Pleasefollowall steps from serial No.(b)to serial No.(I)of Iabove, to castvote

vi. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and remote e-voting user manual for
membersavailablealthe download sectionofwww.evoting.nsdl.comorcaliontolifreeNo.1800222990.

vii. If you arealready registeredwith NSDLfor remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user 10and passwordlPlN for casting your
vote.

viii. Youcanalso updateyour mobile number and emaillD in the userprofiledetails olthe foliowhich may beused for sendingfuture
communication.

ix. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the company as on the cut-off
date of20thJuly,2015.

x. Any personwho acquires shares of the company and becomememberof the company after dispatch of the noticeofAGM and holding
shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 20th July, 2015, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to email ID
evoting@nsdl.co.in or to emaiIIDinvestors.relations@grpweb.com. However if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e­
voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your
password byusing"Forgot UserDetails/ Password"optionavailableonwww.evoting@nsdl.com.

xi. A personwhose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositaries as
on the cut-offdate, shall only be entitled to avail the facility of rematee-voting aswell asvoting attheAGM through ballotpaper.

xii. Chetan R. Shah,PracticingCompany Secretary (MembershipNo.FCS2703) (emaiIIDshah_cr@yahoo.co.in has beenappointed as
the Scrutinizerto scrutinize the remote e-voting and ballot papervoting process, ina fair and transparent manner.

xiii. The Chairman of the AGM shall at the end of the discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the
assistanceof the Scrutinizer,by use of ballot paper for all those memberswho are present at theAGM but have notcast their votes by
availing the remotee-voting facility.

xiv. The Scrutinizershall after the conclusion of voting at theAGM,will first count the votes cast at the meeting and there after unblockthe
votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least twowitnesses not in the employment olthe company and shallmake, not
later than three days of the conclusion of theAGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any,
to the Chairman of theAGM or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the
voting forthwith.

xv. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the companywww.grpweb.comand on
the website of NSDL immediately after declaration of results by the Chairman of AGM or a person authorised by him in writing. The
resultsand the reportshall also be immediately forwarded to the StockExchange/s,where the shares olthe companyare listed.

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015
Registered Office: Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar _ 393 002 Dis!. Bharuch, Gujarat

By Order of the Board of Directors I

Rajendra V. Gandhi
Managing Director .
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Annexure to the Notice
Explanatorv Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the business set out in the
accompanying Notice.

Item No,5:
Nayna R. Gandhi, is a Non-Execulive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company, who was appointed as an Additional
Directorofthe Companyon 30thMay,2015. Herterm of officewill concludeon the dateolthe ensuing 41st Annual GeneralMeeting.

The Companyhas received a notice inwriting with the requisitedeposit from amember,as required under Section 160of the Companies
Act, 2013,proposlnqhercandidature forthe office of the director of the company,liableto retire by rotation.

The Companyhasalso receivedfollowing documentsfrom NaynaR.Gandhi:
(i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule S of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)

Rules,2014,
(ii) Intimation in FormDIR-Sln terms of Companies (Appointment& QualificationofDirectors) Rules,2014, to the effect that she is not

disqualifiedundersub-section (2)ofSeclion 164olthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Smt. Nayna Gandhi is a diploma holder in Home Science and is also director in Grip Polymers Ltd., (wholly owned subsidiary) since
November, 1993.With her appointment as director olthe company,requirement regardingwoman director as stipulated underSection 149
olthe CompaniesAct, 2013will be complied.

The Boardof Directorsaccordingly recommendthe resolutionfor your approval.

None of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company other than Nayna R. Gandhi, herself and Rajendra V. Gandhi,
Managing Director and Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, being her relatives, are in any way concemed or interested, financially or
otherwise in this resolution

Item No,6:

Harsh R. Gandhi has experience of about 14 years with the company in various senior managerial positions in the key areas of market
promotion, material procurement, business development, corporate communications, strategic planning and corporate services. During
this period,HarshR.Gandhi hasacquired good domain expertise.He is activelyassociatedwith Intemational RubberStudyGroup (IRSG)
and also with All India Rubber Industries Association (AIRIA). This has helped him, in having good networking with the customers, the
market and the suppliers. His association with Young PresidentOrganization (yPO) has helped him in getting macro economicexposure.
He has completed two consecutive years of training (total period of two months) for Owner President Management Programwith Harvard
BusinessSchool,Boston,USA.The final term of one monthtrainingwill becompletedby him in the month ofAugust, 2015.This hashelped
him inacquiring in-depth knowledgeaboutlhe business planning, businessstrategiesand general skills of management.His educationas
a Bachelor of Science in Management (with specialization in finance) from Purdue University in USA and his working experience with
BostonConsultingGroup (BCG) prior tojoining GRPLtd., has beenuseful inacquiringknowledge about financial analyticaltools.

Considering the business expertise, experience and in view of the substantial contribution made by him for the growth, progress and
financial stability of the company, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May,2015, on the recommendationolthe Nomination
and RemunerationCommittee, has decided that subject to approval olthe shareholders byway of a special resolutionand subject to such
other approval/s asmay be necessary, HarshR. Gandhi be reappointedas Executive Director for a further period of three yearswith effect
from 16th June, 2015 upon the terms and conditions as to remuneration, perquisites, allowances and benefits as mentioned in the draft
agreement proposedto beentered into between the companyandHarshR.Gandhi.

The requisite declaration regarding fulfilment of conditions mentioned in part I of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
received fromHarshGandhi.

His office shall be liableto retirementof directors by rotationas perthe relevantprovisionsolthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Boardof Directorsaccordingly recommendthe resolutionfor yourapproval.

None of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company other than Harsh R, Gandhi himself and Rajendra V. Gandhi,
Managing Director and Nayna R. Gandhi, Director being his relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in
this resolution.
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Thematerialterms of the saiddraft agreement as referred to inthe resolutionare as follows:

Term:3 (Three)years, from 16thJune 2015 to 15thJune2018 (bothdays inclusive)

Remuneration:

A) Salary:

Rs.6,OO,OOOI- to Rs.7,50,OOOI-Per month
The annual incrementswill be decided by the Nomination & RemunerationCommittee and 1or the Board of Directors in its absolute
discretion.

B) Commission:

RemuneraUonbyway of commission equal to 1% ofthe net profitsofthe company as determined under Section 198ofthe Companies
Act, 2013of a particularfinancial year, subject to a maximumof 12months' salary ofthat particular financial year.

C) PerquisitesandAliowances:

i) In addition to salary and commission payable, Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director shall also be entitled to perquisites and
allowances likeaccommodation (furnishedor otherwise)or house rentallowance in lieu thereof, housemaintenanceallowance
together with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity,water, furnishings, repairs and other
allowances, medical expenses reimbursement, club fees and leave travel concession for self and his family, personal accident
insuranceand such other perquisites and allowances in accordancewith the rules of the Company or as may be agreed to by the
Nominationand RemunerationCommittee and 1or bythe Boardof DirectorsandHarsh R.Gandhi. However,suchperquisitesand
allowancesshall beSUbjectto amaximumof 100%ofthe annual salary.

ii) For the purpose of calculating the above ceiling, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per the Income-TaxRules,
whereverapplicable. In the absence of any such Rules,perquisitesandallowances shall beevaluated at actual cost.

iii) Provision for use of Company's car for office duties and telephone and other communication facilities at residence shall not be
included in the computationof perquisites for the purposeof calculating the saidceiling.

iv) Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation FundorAnnuity Fund shall not be included in the computation of
the aforesaidceiling on perquisites and allowances to the extent these, either singly or together are nottaxable under the Income­
TaxAct.

v) Leaveasper the rulesofthe Company.

vi) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service and encashment of leave at the
endofthe tenure shall not be included inthe computationofthe limitsfor the perquisites and allowances asaforesaid.

0) Minimum Remuneration
Notwithstanding anything contained herein, where in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of Harsh R. Gandhi,
ExecutiveDirector,the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate,the Company may pay him remuneration byway of salary,
perquisitesand allowancenot exceeding the maximum limits laiddown inSection IIof Part IIof ScheduleV ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013
asmodifiedfromtime to time.

Additional information as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is as under:
I. General Information:
1. Natureof Industry

The Company isengaged inthe business of manufacture of reclaimed rubber,customdie forms and thermoplastic elastomer.
2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The company is manufacturing reclaimed rubber since

December 1978,customdie forms sinceMarch 1999and thermoplasticelastomers since June, 2009.
3. In case of newcompanies expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in

the prospectus:NotApplicable.
4. Financial Performancebasedon given indicators:
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5. Foreign Investmentsand Collaborations,if any: Nil
II. Infonnation about Harsh R. Gandhi
1. Background Details I Recognition or awards I job profile and suitability: Refer Para 1 of the Explanatory statement of item No.6

mentionedabove.
2. Past remuneration:Gross remuneration (including salary, commission and contribution to provident and pension funds) for last three

financial years is as under:
Financial Year Gross Remuneration (Rs.lacs)
2012-13 81.40
2013-14 89.10
2014-15 119.28

3. Remunerationproposed: Gross remuneration (excluding exempt perquisites) proposed to be paid to Harsh R. Gandhi in the financial
year inwhich therewill bea lossor inadequacy of profits, shallbemaximumRs.120.00 lacs p.a.

4. Comparativeremunerationprofilewith respect to industry,sizeofthe Company,profile ofthe positionand person:
Taking into consideration the size of the Company, the nature of the industry, the profile, knowledge, skills and responsibilities
shoulderedbyHarshR.Gandhi, the above proposed remuneration iscommensurateand comparablewith the remunerationdrawn by
managerialpersonnel in similar capacities inother companies in the rubberand related industry.

5. Pecuniaryrelationshipdirectly or indirectlywith theCompanyor relationshipwith the managerial personnel:
Harsh R. Gandhi except receiving remuneration as Executive Director, does not have any other pecuniary relationship with the
company.HarshR.Gandhi isa relative ofRajendra Gandhi,ManagingDirectorandNaynaR.Gandhi, Directorofthe company.

III. Other Infonnation:
1. Reasonsof loss or inadequate profits: Profits are likely to be inadequate, due to challenging business environment in the automobile

industry ingeneral and inthe rubber goodsmanufacturing industry in particular.
2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: Company under the dynamic leadership of Harsh R. Gandhi is constantly

endeavoringfor:
a) Revenuemaximizationthrough geographic expansion and industryoutreachfor improved asset tumover.
b)Profitability improvementthrough cost optimizationand newtechnologyadoption; and
c) Rationalizationof capital employed by combiningmanufacturinglocationsand integrating the operations.

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015

By Order of the Board of Directors
RajendraV. Gandhi
Managing Director

Registered Office: Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar - 393 002, Dis!. Bharuch, Gujarat
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Location Map of registered office of GRP Ltd.
Plot No: 8, GIDC Industrial Estate, Ankleshwar-393002
Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat, India.
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Directors' Report to the Members,
Your Directors are pleased to present the FORTY FIRST ANNUAL REPORT & AUDITED ACCOUNTS for the year ended 31st March,
2015

FINANCIAL RESULTS Year ended 31st March
Particulars 2015 2014

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Sales & Other Income 34,653 31,082
Profit before depreciation & tax 2,574 3,020
Depreciation 1,472 1,244
Profit before tax 1,102 1,776

Provision for tax (net of MAT entitlement) 232 298

Deferred tax expenditure (76) 396

(Short) Provision of income tax (net) of earlier year 59 -
Profit after tax for the year 887 1,082

Brought forward profit 4331 4,498

Amount available for appropriation 5218 5,580

Transfer to General Reserve 1,000

Interim Dividend - 20

Proposed Dividend I Final Dividend 150 193

Tax on dividend 30 36

Transitional provision for depreciation (net of deferred tax) 19

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 5019 4,331

5218 5,580
EPS:

Basic (Rs.) 66.51 81.20
Diluted (Rs,) 66.51 81.20

DIVIDEND

Basedon performanceof the company for the year under the report, the Board recommends a dividend of RS.11.25per share (112.50%)
forthe year ended31stMarch, 2015. [Previous year total dividendwas Rs.16/-per share (160%)].

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 your Company achieved a turnover of Rs,33,556 lakhs as against a turnover of
Rs.30,402 lakhs in the previous year, registering a growth of 10%.The export turnover of your Company during the year was RS.24,145
lakhs (72% of total turnover) as against Rs,21,182(70% of total turnover) achieved in the previous year. Due to smoother availability of
powerat theTamilNaduplant, capacity utilizationhas improved from 38% in the previousyearto 82% in this year.
During the year, the company has merged its two manufacturing plants in Solapur,With this, Chincholi (Solapur) plant capacity has been
enhanced to 30000 MT p.a. The plant infrastructure at MIDC, Akkalkot Road, Solapur is available for future growth opportunities. The
abovemergerwill leadto improved utilization and greater economyof scaleadvantage,
Your company availed benefit of lower energy cost at its plants in Ankleshwar and Panoli through purchase of power over energy
exchange.Subsequently,from March2014 onwards, the matter issub-judice and therefore company's energy need has reverted to a more
expensive source.
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Industrial polymer businessof the company saw a fall in volumes on accountof aweak automotive sector, causinga drop indemand.Grant
of patents for an alternate process is awaited, afterwhich this business should witness further growth.
Customs die forms business witnessed muted performance.
Your Company's overall capacity utilization has increased from 76% to 80%. The operating margins during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2015 have witnessed severe pressure as compared to the previous year due to stagnant sales price and increase in operational
cost because of rawmaterial prices, energy and employee cost. Fall in the prices of natural and synthetic rubberwas amajor cause for not
beingable to passon input cost increases to sales price.
The Company has taken several measures to reduce costs and optimize margins. Merger of Solapur plants and better capacity utilization
of Perundurai plant is expected to result in cost optimization during the current year, amidst continuing scenario of weak natural and
synthetic rubber prices.
The Research and Development Centre and Nylon Recovery Pilot plant at Panoli have received approval in December 2014 from
Departmentof Scientific& Industrial Research, Ministryof Science&Technology(DSIR) Government of India,NewDelhi.
The achievementsof your company have beenacknowledged as follows:-

•
•
•

All IndiaRubber IndustriesAssociation's TopExportAward inthe RawMaterial sector
TopExportAward- CAPEXIL in RubberProduct Panel.
Quality Circle Forumof India's various trophieswere received byAnkleshwar and Panoli plants for Production, Maintenance,Quality
Control,CDFand EHS&Administration.
Impact PositiveTeamofAnkleshwar plantwon ExcellenceTrophyduringNationalConvention of Quality Circle-2014at Pune.
Ankleshwar plant haswon a ParExcellenceTrophyat a 5SConclaveorganized byQCFI at Madurai.

•
•
The company has beensubjected to a cyber crime during the year resulting in a sumof USD6,38,367 equivalent to RS.3,98,97,938/- being
paid by an overseas customer into an unauthorized account. The company continues to treat this as recoverable from the customer and
necessarysteps in this regardhave already been initiatedby the companyand it is hopeful about the full recoveryolthe same.
SUBSIDIARIES
Salient features of financial statement of its Wholly-owned Subsidiary company viz. Grip Polymers Limited in form AOC-1 is attached
herewith. (Annexure 1)
DIRECTORS
Nikhil Desai andAtul Desai have resigned as directors of the companywith effect from 4th February,2015. The Board placeson record its
appreciation andgratitude forthe valuable services rendered bythemduring their tenure as directors olthe Company.
Bhagwandas T. Doshi, Rajeev M. Pandia and Apurva R. Shah have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company for the
periodoffive years, byobtaining assent of shareholders on 24th March,2015 through postal ballot process.
Smt. NaynaR. Gandhi,whowas appointed as anAdditional Directoron 30thMay2015,holds the said office till the dateof the conclusion0
the ensuing 41 stAnnual General Meeting. A notice has been received from a member proposing her candidature for her reappointment as
adirector liableto retire by rotation.
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Harsh R. Gandhi, retires by rotation at the ensuing 41st Annual General
Meetingand beingeligible offers himself for reappointment.
All the Independent Directors have submitted their declarations to the Board to the effect that they fulfill the required criteria 0
independenceasmentioned inthe provisionsof Section 149(6)olthe CompaniesAct, 2013.
DIRECTORSRESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Inaccordancewith the provisionsof Section 134(5)of theCompaniesAct, 2013 the Board of Directors confirm that:
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015, the applicable accounting standards have bee

followed and there had been nomaterial departure;
(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that ar

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fairview of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2015 and of the profi
and lossaccountolthe company for the year ended on that date;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with th
provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and othe
irregularities;

(d) the directors had preparedthe annual accounts on agoing concern basis;
(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls ar

adequateandwereoperating effectively; and
(I) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliancewith the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systemswer

adequateandoperating effectively

12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS AND CORPORATEGOVERNANCE
Report on Managementdiscussion and analysis and corporate governance attached herewith (Annexure 2) form an integral part of this
report.The certificatefromauditors olthe company,certifying complianceolthe conditionsof corporate governanceas stipulated inclause
49 olthe listingagreement, is annexed to the report on corporategovernance.(Annexure3)
The board of directors of the company was not consisting of the required number of independent directors for the quarter October to
December 2014. However with reconstitution of the board w.e.!. 4th February, 2015, the board is having the required number of
independentdirectors.
STATUTORYAUDITORS
A. B. Modi & Associates, CharteredAccountants, Mumbai, the statutory auditors of the Company, will retire at the ensuing 41st annual
general meetingand areeligible for reappointment.A. B.Modi & Associates has, under Section 139olthe CompaniesAct, 2013 furnished
a certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.
SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT
Chetan R. Shah, Practicing Company Secretary has conducted secretarial audit pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013and the Rulesmade there under.His secretarialaudit report is attached herewith.(Annexure4)
The board of directors of the company was not consisting of the required number of independent directors for the quarter October to
December 2014. However with reconstitution of the board w.e.L 4th February, 2015, the board is having the required number of
independentdirectors.
VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a vigil mechanism and oversees the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors.
The Companyhas also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns.The
Companyhasalso provideddirect access to the Chairman oltheAudit Committee in exceptional cases. Vigil Mechanism (WhistleBlower)
Policyhasbeenhostedby the company on itswebsite.
DEVELOPMENTAND IMPLEMENTATIONOF RISKMANAGEMENT
Periodic assessments by functional heads to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks to enable the
company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are classified as financial risks, operational risksand market risks. The
risks are taken intoaccountwhile preparing the annual business plan for the year.The Board is also periodically informedolthe business
risksand the actionstakento managethem.
DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR)ACTIVITIES
CSR Committee hasbeen constituted by the Board of directors. The Committee hasadopted CSR policy to contribute towards social and
economic developmentolthe communities where the companyoperates in, andwhile doing the same, to build a sustainableway of life for
all sections of society,with emphasis and focus on education, health care, sustainable livelihood and empowerment of women.The CSR
Policy hasalso beenuploadedon thewebsite olthe Company.
TheAnnual ReportonCSRactivities olthe Company isattached herewith.(Annexure5)
PARTICULARSOFLOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTSMADEUNDERSECTION 186OFTHECOMPANIESACT,2013
The particularsof loans, guaranteesor investmentsmade underSection 186is attached herewith.(Annexure 6)
PARTICULARSOFCONTRACTSORARRANGEMENTS MADEWITH RELATEDPARTIES
The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188(1) of the CompaniesAct, 2013in form
AOC-2 isattached herewith.(Annexure7)
COMPANY'S POLICYRELATING TO PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONOFTHE BOARD, DIRECTORSAPPOINTMENT,PAYMENTOF
REMUNERATIONAND DISCHARGEOF DUTIES:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of the individual Directors and the
Boardwhich is basedon;
• Knowledgeto performthe role;
• TImeand level of participation;
• Performanceof dutiesand level of oversight; and
• Professionalconductand independence;
The evaluationwas carried out by means of the observations made by all the Directors on the set of questions developed by themwhich
brought out the key attributes of the Directors, quality of interactions among them and its effectiveness. The board is collectively of the
opinion that the overall performance of the board, committees thereof and the individual Directors is satisfactory and conducive to the
growth and progressof the company.

13



GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

The Company's Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors' qualifications, positive
attributes, independenceof Directors and other related matters as provided under Section178(3) of the CompaniesAct, 2013 is attached
herewith.(Annexure8)
POLICYAGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENTThe Companyhas in place anti sexual harassment policy in linewith the requirements olThe Sexual Harassment ofWomen atWorkplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint regarding sexual .
harassmenthasbeen receivedbythe committee during the financial year 2014-15.

ANNUAL RETURNThe extract ofAnnual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 readwith Rule 12olthe
Companies(ManagementandAdministration) Rules, 2014 is attachedherewith. (Annexure9)

DEPOSITSThe Companyhasneitheraccepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year 2014-15 under review.Companyhas repaidall the
deposits olthe kind referredto in Company (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,2014whichwere existing as on 31' March, 2014.

INFORMATIONPURSUANTTOSECTION 197(12)OFTHECOMPANIESACT,2013
The above information(to the extent applicable) is attached herewith.(Annexure 10)
INFORMATIONPURSUANTTOSECTION 134 (3)(M)& (Q)OFTHECOMPANIESACT,2013
The above information (to the extent applicable) is attached herewith.(Annexure 11)
POLICIES FORRELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS AND FORDETERMININGMATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES:
Theweb linkto accessthe abovetwo policies hosted bythe companyon itswebsite www.grpweb.comis asunder:
a) http://www.grpweb.comlpdf/Related%20party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf
b) http://www.grpweb.com/pdf/Policy%20for%20determining%20material%2Osubsidiaries.pdf

ACKNOWLEDGMENTSYour Directors place on record their sincere thanks to employees, bankers, business associates, consultants, and variousGovernment
Authorities for their continued support extended to your Company. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the support and
confidence reposedbyshareholders in the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date:30· May2015
Place:Mumbai

RajendraGandhi
Managing Director

HarshGandhi
Executive Director
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Annexure 1
Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

Part "A" : Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sr.No. Name of the subsidiary Grip Polymers Ltd.

1 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding Not Applicablecompany's reporting period

2 Reportingcurrency and exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Not Applicablefinancial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

3 Share capital ~ 5,00,0001-

4 Reserves and surplus ~ 23,57,578/-

5 Total assets ~ 29,19,464/-

6 Total liabilities ~ 47,38,8871-

7 Investments ~ 46,77,0001-

8 Turnover ~ 2,54,153/-

9 Profit before taxation ~ 94,396/-

10 Provision for taxation ~ 56,881/-

11 Profrtafter taxation f 37,5151-

12 Proposed Dividend Nil

13 % of shareholding 100%

Notes : The following information shall be furnished at the end if the statement:

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations Nil

2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of GRPLimited

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30· May, 2015

Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi
Managing Director Executive Director
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Annexure 2

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS REPORT 2014-15

The Indianeconomywas expected to grow by 5.4% in2014-15, and Ihe growth ratewas expected to further scale up to 6.5%wilh renewed
investment and various govemment measures. Inflation continues to be ticking lower, and softening of interest rates coupledwith stable
IndianRupeeand loweroil prices is bringing in higher growth expectations. In light ofthe slow growth and specifically lowergrowth indirect
customer segments, the following table exhibits, in summary,the financial performanceofthe Companyforthe year 2014-15:

Key Parameters 2014-15 2013-14

Turnover (Rs.'lakhs) 33,556 30,402

Profit after Tax (Rs.'lakhs) 887 1,082

Profit after Tax 10Turnover(%) 3% 4%

Sales to FixedAssets Employed(ratio) 3 times 2 times

Current Ratio 1.08 1.09

Return on Capital Employed 11% 16%

Markel Value per share (Rs.) (As on 31.03.2015) 1,059 1,060

Sales value (growth in % over previous year) 10 13

Sales volume (growth in % over previous year) 5 5

Domestic sales value (growth in % over previous year) 2 (4)

Export sales value (growth in % over previous year) 14 22

The profil after tax for the year 2014-15 as agains12013-14 has decreased by 18% to RS.887 lakhs. Increasing raw material costs,
employee cost due to revision in wages as per Long Term Settlement with workers inAnkleshwar and wage increase in MIDCAlkalkot
RoadPlantat Solapuras a result of a one year InterimAgreement, increase in power cost at Gujarat plants due to discontinuanceof power
trading at the exchange and major increase in power cost in Maharashtra were the key reasons for the dent in the operating margins.
Moreover, RS.217lakhs spent on Research and Developmentwere debited 10respective heads in the Profit & Loss account, the benefits
of which will be reaped in Ihe coming years, over and above the tax benefils arising from the recognition and approval from DSIRwhichwill
be reflected inthe currentyear's tax return.Accordingly, the profit before tax fell in2014-15 vis-a-vis 2013-14 by38%.

Segment wise or product wise performance:
In accordance with Ihe Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the company has
classified its business intotwo reportable business segmenls basedon natureof business.
a) ReclaimRubber:

This segment comprises of reclaim rubber sheets for tyre and non-tyre rubber goods industries. The company continues to be the
market leader in reclaim rubber segment. The company has achieved a 11%growth in this segment in the current financial year as
comparedto previousyear.This business spans42 countriesand suppliesto among the largest tyre and non tyre companies.
The total salesunder this segment is Rs.32,536Iakhs for the financial year.

b) Windmill:
The company has invested in Windmill at Kuchhadi in Gujarat in the financial year 2009-10. For the power units generated by the
Windmill, the companygets credit in its electricity bill of its Panoli plant inGujarat.

c) IndustrialPOlymers:
This segment hasclocked ina negative growth of21% in the current financial year as compared to previousyear on accountof aweak
automotive sector.

Industry Structure and Development:
In recent years, recycling has gained traction worldwide due to the growing focus on sustainability and realization that natural resources
are finite. More and morecompanies are articulating a vision of using greater portion of recycled material in their products or formulations.
The rubber industry is no different.

End-of-life tyres (ELD are an important source of recycled rubber around theworld and over the years its status has changedfrom 'waste'
to 'resource'.The reclaim rubber induslry has largely been builtaround this realityand development. In recentdecades,other rubberwaste
sources too havestartedgetting reclaimed leading to the growth and acceplance oflhe reclaim rubber industry.
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ELTsaremanaged ina variety ofways: TaxationSystem (tyre producers paya tax to the Government who in turn compensate recyclersfor
disposal of ELTs),FreeMarket (Operators act in compliancewith localwaste management lawwhich assigns responsibility for the stages
of production and recovery), Producer Responsibility (tyre producers responsible for managing ELTs) and No Regulation (no legal
structuredefined for ELTstherefore marketforces determine howELTsaredisposed- prevalent inmost emergingmarkets).

India follows the 'No Regulation on ELTs'model that has resulted in a highly competitive market on one side and significant economic
benefits to rubber using industries on the other. In addition to this, ij also continues to deliver environment conservation by limiting the
usage of virgin polymers. The sustained growth of the automotive industry in India has led to the growth oftyre industry,which in tum has
resulted inthe rapidgrowth inavailability ofELTs. The latter hasallowed the Indian reclaim rubber industry to becomeamajor source to the
entire globe, notjust India.

Where there Isgrowth and low entry barriers, entry of large number of new players is guaranteed. India has been no exception to this with
several newreclaimrubbermanufacturers setting upshop in India leadingto growingcompetition for customers and for rawmaterial. Such
units have mushroomed in the last 2-3 years in Western and Northern part of India; this has directly affected GRP (80% of our
manufacturing capacity is in Western India). Added to this has been the advent of tyre pyrolysis units hungry for ELTsas a source of
recoveringoil andcarbonblack; so competition has beencoming fromoutside the reclaim rubber industry aswell. Margins,therefore, have
come underpressureover the lastseveral quarters.

Revenuesolthe industry,however,continue to grow.While the tyreand pneumatictube sector continue to be the single largestconsumers
of reclaim rubber,non-tyre industries like conveyor belting, automotive profiles, hoses, roofing and flooring, civil engineering,adhesives,
moulded andextrusionproductshave also increased usageslgnlflcantly.

The IndustrialPolymersbusiness is a small part olthe rapidlygrowing engineeringplastic industry in India. Current GRPproducts include
PA6 and PA6,6, - upcycled through use of recovered nylon from ELT.Consumers include compounders and industries like automotive,
industrial and electrical productsetc. The lowerend olthe product segment is highly commoditizedwith several 'recyclers'.The higherend
iswheremarginsarebetterasmostmaterial is consumed in industries (andbycustomers)who are sensitive to specificationsandquality.

The custom die forms business is a niche segment business in which products made out of ELTare used to cater to global agricultural
equipment manufacturers,dock bumper pad suppliers, industrial flooring mats etc. mainly in NorthAmerica. The good availability oltruck
bias tyres in Indiahasensuredthat this remains aviable business.

Opportunities and Concerns
2014-15was a year where theworld comprised of regions that continuedto struggle (Europe,Japan), regionswhere growthshowedsigns
of revival (N.America), regionswhere gradual but steadygrowth continued (ASia,LatinAmerica) and regions thatwent into suddendecline
(Russia, selectMiddleEast economies).

With the change in central government, India emerged as the 'darling' of investors as the new party in power promised to unlock stuck
projects, put renewedfocus on ease of doing businessand openlywelcomedcompanies to 'Make in India'. GDPgrowth that hadspluttered
to less than 5% over the last couple of years finally took an upward trajectory-even if not as steep aswas expected. In the last quarter of
the year, liP was the highest in a year, services growth was up; agriculture however continued to struggle. The central bank dropped
interest rates not once but twice due to continuously declining inflation, making more money available to industry.W~hin industry, the
automotive sector finally began to show signs of revivalwith commercial vehicle sales continuing to grow, car sales revivingafter almost 2
years of declinewhile Indiacontinued to bethe largest twowheelermarket intheworld.

The woes olthe automotive segment for the previous two years hadspilled over into the tyre industry in India aswell. However,historically
low natural and synthetic rubber prices ensured that all major tyre companies in Indiamade unprecedented profits despite low growth in
volumes. But lackof volume growthmeant stagnation in usageof reclaim rubber inthe sector- for the past several years growth inthe tyre
sector had translated automatically into growth for the reclaim rubber industry. In 2014 this was not to be so. Compounding this was the
diminished value proposition of reclaim rubber due to low natural rubber (NR) & synthetic rubber (SR) prices; many customers actually
decreased usagefor the firsltime inmanyyears.

A large chunk of the reclaim rubber produced in India is exported; therefore currency movements playa critical role in the business.More
than two-third revenueof your company is contributed by exports to 50+ countriesolthe world so currency fluctuations can be critical input
into performanceon thewhole. The sudden, steep and sustaineddepreciationolthe Euro hit your company hard as almost 30% revenue
comes from this region.With NR & SR prices at a historical low,our ability to pass on the effect of Euro depreciation could not be passed
severely denting margins. However, volumes remained relatively unaffected despite severe competition from Indian players, and
Europeanmanufacturersdue to the strong relationships that your Company has built over the years and continues to strengthenthrough
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GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

» EnvironmentandSafetyRisks:
YourCompany'smanufacturing units are subject to environmentaland safety risks.While your Company is adheringto the local
legislationon environmental protection, such adherence is supportedbystandards, rules, guidelines and auditsat regular
intervalsbyexperts, to ensure safety standards areput inplace to safeguardpeople, environment and products.

» Risksdueto fire and flood:
YourCompany'spropertyand stocks are subject to risksof lossdueto fire and flood and these aremitigatedwith insuranceand
fire detectingand fire fighting equipment and proper securitypersonnel.

» Risksdue to frauds anderrors:
These risksaremitigatedby pulling controls in placeand periodic internalauditswhich canact as a preventivemeasure.

Human Resources:
Your companyhad 1301employees as on 31" March,2015as against 1311employees as on 31" March, 2014.YourCompanyhasvarious
HR initiatives In placedesigned to ensure that GRP employees continue to be productive, efficient and believe the Companyto be a great
place towork and builda career.HR initiatives are also in place to driveandemphasize the GRPvalues: MaintainingBalance,Adaptable to
change, Commitment, Integrity,Teamwork.The HRDepartment has commenced initiation and implementation of training need analysis,
sourced trainers and have started implementation of Learning & Development activities for the next 2 years, implemented an online
EmployeeSatisfactionSurvey,conducted aCompensation& Benefit surveyfor the Company.

Your Company has a development programme designed to develop leaders and build a talent pipeline. Your Company has cordial
relationswithemployeesat all levels.

Manufacturing:
Initiatives on the manufacturing side include successful implementation of Five-S Workplace Management System, Six Sigma projects.
The samehas resultedin improvedproductivity,yield, output, process,efficiencyofworkers.

Health Safety and Environment:
YourCompanymaintainsthe highest standards of Occupational Health, Safety and Security.All five plants of your Companyare certified
for the Environment Management System (IS014001 :2004) and Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems (OHSAS
18001:2007).YourCompanyalso implements ISO9001:2008 (QualityManagementSystemStandard).
YourCompanyhastakenmany initiatives towards environmentconservationviz useofwind energy.
All employeesofthe Company involved directly inmanufacturingand projectmanagementwere providedwith safetyawarenesstrainings
through various inijiatives.
As per MaharashtraPollution Control Board norms we have arranged yearly EnvironmentAudit from third party l.e, Global Enviro Tech
Services in November2014 at Chincholi plant.

Raw Materials:
The slowdown in the automobile industry has led to reducedavailability of endof life (EOL)tyres. The domestic demandfor EOLtyres has
been from the pyrolysis industry,apart from reclaimed rubber industry.The pressureon prices of rawmaterial was intenseduringthe first
half of financial year 2014-15, there was some respite due to lower oil prices in the second half. Your company has developed import
sources of EOL tyres, tubes and other raw materials to help off set the pressures on domestic competition. Total import of materials
represent 3.45% of the company's spend on the raw materials and this would increase in the coming years, subject to regulatory
permissions.

Cautionary Statement:
Statement in the ManagementDiscussion andAnalysis describing the company's objectives, proiectlons, estimates and expectationmay
be forward lookingwithin the meaning of applicable lawsand regulations.Actual resultsmight differmaterially from thoseeither expressed
or implied. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or reverse any forward looking statements, on the basis of
any subsequentdevelopments, information or events.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of GRP Limited

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30' May, 2015

Rajendra Gandhi
Managing Director

Harsh Gandhi
Executive Director
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

"Note: RajendraV. Gandhi ceased to be the Chairman olthe Boardw.e.f. 4" February,2015 and is designated as ManagingDirectorolthe
Company.NikhilM.Desai&Atul S. Desaiceased to be adirectorolthe Companyw.e.f. 4'"February,2015.

Disclosureof relationshipbetweendirectors inter-se:
a) RajendraV.GandhiandMaheshV.Gandhi are relatedto eachotheras brothers.
b) HarshR.Gandhi isthe sonof RajendraV. Gandhi.
Except the above,there is noother inter-se relationship betweenthe directors.

3, AuditCommittee
i) Briefdescription oftenns of reference:

1. Oversightof the company's financial reporting processand the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statement iscorrect, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendationfor appointment, remunerationand tenns of appointmentof auditors of the company;
3. Approval of paymentto statutory auditors for any otherservices renderedbythe statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing,with the management, the annual financial statementsand auditor's report thereon before submission to the board

for approval,with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of

clause (c)of sub-section 3 of section 134olthe CompaniesAct, 2013
b.Changes, if any,inaccounting policies and practicesand reasonsforthe same
c. Majoraccountingentries involvingestimates basedon the exerciseofjudgment bymanagement
d. Significantadjustmentsmade inthe financial statementsarisingout of audit findings
e. Compliancewith listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
f. Disclosureof any related party transactions
g. Qualifications inthe draft audit report

5. Reviewing,with the management, the quartertyfinancial statementsbeforesubmission to the board forapproval;
6. Reviewing,with the management, the statement of uses I applicationoffunds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue,

preferential issue, etc.), the statement offunds utilized for purposesother than those stated in the offer document! prospectus I
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency morutorinqthe utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and
makingappropriate recommendations to the Boardto take upsteps in this matter;

7. Reviewandmonitor the auditor's independenceand performance,and effectiveness ofaudit process;
8. Approvalor anysubsequent modificationoltransactions of the companywith relatedparties;
9. Scrutinyof inter-corporate loansand investments;
10. Valuationof undertakingsor assets of the company,wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluationof internalfinancial controls and riskmanagementsystems;
12. Reviewing,with the management, perfonnance of statutoryand internal auditors, adequacy olthe internalcontrol systems;
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and

seniorityolthe official heading the department, reportingstructurecoverage and frequency of internaland
14. Discussionwith internalauditors of any significant findingsand follow upthere on;
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or

irregularityor a failure of internal control systemsof amaterialnatureand reportingthe matter to the board;
16. Discussionwith statutoryauditors before the audit commences,aboullhe nature and scope of audit aswell aspost-audit

discussionto ascertainany areaof concern;
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of

non-paymentof declared dividends) and creditors;
18. Toreviewthe functioning olthe Whistle Blowermechanism;
19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or

dischargingthatfunction) after assessing the qualifications, experienceand background, etc. olthe candidate;
20. Carryingout anyother function as ismentioned inthe terms of referenceof theAudit Committee.

ii) Composition, NameofMembersandChairperson

Name of Director Category
Audit Committee Meetings Current position held

Held Attended in the committee

Rajeev M. Pandia Non Executive Independent 4 4 Chairperson

Dr.PeterPhilip Non Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member
BhagwandasT.Doshi Non Executive Independent 4 2 Member
ApurvaR Shah# Non Executive Independent 4 1 Member
Rajendra V. Gandhi- Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member

AtulS.Desai" Non Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee (Formerly known as Investors' Grievance Committee):
i) Composition, Nameofmembersand Chairperson

Name of Director Category Current position held in the committee
Apurva R. Shah Non Executive Independent Chairperson
Rajendra V.Gandhi Executive Non Independent Member
Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Non Independent Member

Companydidnot holdanymeetings of this committee duringthe FinancialYear2014-15, as therewere not agenta Itemswhich were
requiredto be placedbefore this committee

ii) Name& Designation of Compliance Officer
GaneshA. Ghangurde, President&Chief FinancialOfficer&CompanySecretary.

iii) A Statement of various complaints received and cleared by the Company during the financial year 2014-15 is given
below:

Nature of Complaints Received Cleared Pending
Non receipt of dividend Nil Nil Nil
Non receipt of Annual report Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil Nil

6. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
i) Brief description of terms of reference

• Formulateand updateCSR Policy,whichwill be approvedbythe Board
• Suggestareasof interventionto the Board
• Approveprojectsthat are inconformancewith the CSRpolicy
• Putmonitoringmechanisms in place to track the progressof eachproject
• RecommendtheCSRexpenditure to the Boardfor approval

ii) Composition, Nameof members and Chairperson

Name of Director Category Current position CSR Committee Meetina
held in the committee Held Attended

Rajeev M. Pandia Non-Executive Independent Chairperson 1 1
RajendraV. Gandhi Executive (Promoter) Member 1 1
Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Director Member 1 1

7. Meeting of Independent Directors:
During the year under review, all the Independent Directors of the Company met on 30" March, 2015, to review the performance of
non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company(to the extent
applicable) and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the
Board.

8, General Body Meetings
Financial Year Date TIme Nature Special Resolutions passedEnded

31· March, 2012 12" June, 2.30 PM EGM I.Change in name of Company.
2012 2.Reappointment & revision in remuneration of

Harsh R. Gandhi as Executive Director

31· March, 2012 24'"August, 2.30 PM AGM No Special Resolution was passed at this meeting.2012

31· March, 2013 4" September, 2.30 PM AGM Re-appointment of Rajendra Gandhi as Vice-Chairman
2013 & Managing Director

31· March, 2014 28" July, 11.30AM AGM No Special Resolution was passed at this meeting.2014
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

10. Means of Communication
The company regularly publishes its quarterly, half-yearly and annual results within the prescribed time limit and in the prescribed
format in National and Regional Daily Newspapers viz. The Indian Express, Loksatta, The Financial Express and Sandesh. These
results are also made available on the web site olthe company www.grpweb.com
Company is also in compliance with the listing agreement regarding the communication to the stock exchanges.

11. GeneralShareholderinformation
i) Annual General Meeting

Day, date and time

Plot No.8, G.I.D.C. Estate, Ankleshwar - 393002Venue

Monday 27" July, 2015 at 12.30 P. M.

ii) Financial year: I" April to 31" March.

iii) Date of Book Closure
Tuesday 21" July, 2015 to Monday 27" July, 2015 (both days inclusive).

iv) Dividend payment date
Date of payment of dividend for the financial year 2014-15, shall be with in 30 days from 27th July, 2015.

v) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Name of Stock Exchange ISIN No. Scrip Code

BSE Ltd. INE137101015 BSE 509152

NSEIL INE137101015 GRPLTD (series - EQ)

The listing fees have been paid to both the above Exchanges for the financial year 2015-16.

vi) Manket Price Data: High, low during each month during the financial year 2014-15. Monthly Share Price data olthe Company's
equity shares of RS.l0/- each fully paid up, traded on BSE and National Stock Exchange of India Limited for the year ended 31"
March, 2015 is as under:

SSE NSE·

Month Highest Rate (Rs.) Lowest Rate (Rs.) Highest Rate (Rs.) Lowest Rate (Rs.)

April 2014 1398.00 1055.00 - -
May 2014 1400.00 1115.00 - -
June 2014 1547.95 1210.00 - -
July 2014 1435.00 1200.10 - -
August 2014 1342.50 1055.00 - -
September.2014 .1465.00 1270.00 - -
October 2014 1345.20 1207.50 - -
November 2014 1269.95 1064.95 - -
December 2014 1185.00 1061.00 - -
January 2015 1626.75 1105.00 - -
February 2015 1790.00 1221.00 1790.00 1209.00

March 2015 1260.00 1001.00 1319.95 1015.00

• Company's shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f.12" February, 2015
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

(2) Shareholdingpatternas on 31" March, 2015

Categories No. of Shares Amount in Rs. % totolal

Promoter and Promoter Group holding 610221 6102210 45.77

Public holding

Directors (independenl) 2310 23100 0.17

Mutual Fund I Banks 50 500 0.00

NRls IOCBs 19566 195660 1.47

Bodies Corporate 62123 621230 4.66

Public 639063 6390630 47.93

Total 1333333 13333330 100.00

x TheCompany has not issued any GDRs IADRs, warrants or any other convertible instruments.
xi Plant Location

Ankleshwar,Panoli,Solapur andPerundurai.
xii Address for Correspondence :

GRPLimited
510,"A"Wing, KohinoorCityCommercial-l, Kirol Road,Off. L. B.S.Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai400070.
Telephone: +(91)-(22)-67082500/6708260 Fax :+(91)-(22)-25004376/67969240
Email: investor.relations@grpweb.com

12. Declaration by the Managing Directorfor compliance with code of conduct in pursuance of clause 49 (II) (E) (2) ofthe listing
agreement
I hereby declare that all the board members and senior management personnel of the company have affirmed to the board of
directors, their compliancewith the code of conduct ofthe companyfor the financial year 2014-15, pursuant to clause49 (II) (E) (2) of
the listingagreement.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30thMay,2015

RajendraV. Gandhi
ManagingDirector

13. Managing Director and CFOcertification, issued pursuantlo the provisions of clause 49 (IX) of the listing agreement:

ToThe BoardofDirectors ofGRP Ltd.

We have reviewedfinancial statements and the cash flow statementofGRP Ltd., for the year ended 31st March,2015 and to the best
of our knowledgeand belief,we state that:
a) (i) These statementdo not contain anymaterially untruestatement or omit anymaterial fact or contain statements thatmight be

mislead;
(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing

accountingstandardswith applicable lawsand regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegalor violate theCompany's codeof conduct;

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have not come across any
reportabledeficiencies in the deSignor operationof such internalcontrols.

27



Bl

'AuedwooS~lAqpamaq01UJnlSJlenuuea~l~1!M5uoles/85ue~ox3~OOIS8~1onussaqosieII!MSleO~!lJaopiesa~l
'lJodaJS!~l01pexeuusS!'Auedwoos~ljOsionpne'sluelunoo0'v'p8JSlJe~o'ssleposs'v'1I!polAJ's''v''S/IAJWOJjPSA!808J'85ue40x3
~OOISa4141!MluawaaJ5e5u!IS!Ia41U!palelnd!ISse'80UeUJaAOEj81eJodJoojOSUO!I!PUOOjOaOue!ldwoo5u!pJe5aJaleO~!lJao

8~UeUJ81\oga18JodJo:)uoaJe:)IJI~a:),SJ01!P"\f',.~

'5~Ol'AelAJ.0£uoPla4SJopaJ!OjOpJeosjO5u!ISSWa~leiojeqpsoejdseM81BOWlJaOexoqea41

5ioz'AelAJ.O£'!eqwnlAJ

JopaJ!O5u!5euelAJ
!4pueEj'/\eJPusfel:j

AJel9JOSSAuedwoo11Jao!!!olepueu!~jal401I1Uap!saJd
apJn6ue4Ej''v'4s8ueEj

'awes
s41jOAJSAOOSJIInja411noqeInjsd04S!I!pueAuedwoos41Aqpale!I'U!uasqApeSJlesAe4PJe6aJS!41UIsdsisAJessaoau
pueJaWOlSnoa41WOJjslqeJsAoosJseS!41leSJl01ssnU!IUOOAuedwoos41'lunoooepezuoumeunueOIU!rsuroisno
SeSSJSAOueAqPied5u!sq-/8£6'L6'86'£'Sl:jollUSleA!nbsL9£'8£'9OSnjOwnseU!5u!llnsaJJeaAs415u!,np8WUOJ8qAOe01
paioefqnsuaaqsell~uedwoo9lU'J91\9MOH'aJBMeawooaq9ABLjaM40!llM10pneJjlueoy!u6!sJOseoueisuiauBJB9J8lH1841(!i!)

'Jea/\94lDu!JnpS9!O!IOd6u!lUnOOOeU!sa6uB40lueo!J!UD!Sau9JB9J9lUle4l(n)
:JeSAa~16u!,np5u!lJodsJle!oueu~J8Ao10JlUOOleUJ81U!ul's85ue40lUeO~!u5Isou8Je9J9411e41(!)

aamwwool!pn'v'941pueSJOl!pn'v'84101p91eO!pU!8Ae4aM(p
3AI1ISQdl)VdV>l1

031111\111d~D



GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIV[

Annexure 3

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members ofGRP Limited

We have examined the compliance of condttions of Corporate Governance by GRP Limited for the year ended 31" March, 2015, as
stipulated inClause49 olthe ListingAgreement olthe saidCompanywith the StockExchanges in India.

The complianceof conditions ofCorporate Governance is the responsibilityolthe Company's management. Ourexaminationwas carried
out inaccordancewith the Guidance Noteon Certification ofCorporateGovernance (As stipulated in Clause49 olthe ListingAgreement),
issued by the InstituteOf CharteredAccountants of India and was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuringthe compliance olthe conditions olthe CorporateGovernance. It is neither an audit nor an expressionof opinion on
the financial statementsolthe Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has mainly
complied with the conditions ofCorporate Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned ListingAgreement except non compliance of
requirementof havingadequate number of IndependentDirectorsduringthe quarterOctober to December,2014.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effecliveness with
which themanagementhasconducted the affairs of theCompany.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30"May,2015

ForA. B.Modi&Associates
CharteredAccountants
ICAIFirm RegistrationNo.106473W

(Rajesh S. Shah)
Partner
Membership NO.17844
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

F) TheCompanyhasobtained all necessary approvals underthe various provisionsofthe Act;
G) Therewas no prosecution initiated and no fines or penaltieswere imposedduring the year under review under theAct, SEBIAct,

SCRA, DepositoriesAct, ListingAgreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the
Company,its Directorsand Officers.

I further report that

Subject to remarks made in point D above, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under reviewwere carried out in compliancewith the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the BoardMeetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meetingand for meaningfulparticipationat the meeting.

Majoritydecision iscarriedthroughwhile the dissentingmembers'views arecapturedand recordedas partofthe minutes.
The followingmentionedobservations aremade:

A) The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and arrangements,
shareholdings/ debenture holdingsand directorships inother companiesand interests inother entities;

B) The Directors have complied wijh the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibilijy of appointment, their being
independentand compliancewith the Codeof BusinessConduct andethics for Directorsand ManagementPersonnel;

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Companyto monitorand ensurecompliancewith applicable laws, rules, regulationsandguidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Companyhas nomajor/ specificevents, actions having amajorbearingon the Company's
affairs in pursuanceofthe above referred laws, rules, regulations,guidelines, standards,etc. referred to above viz.

(i) Public/RightlPreferential issueof shares / debentures/sweatequityetc.
(ii) Redemption/ buy-backof securities
(iii) Majordecisionstaken by the members inpursuance to section 180ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013.
(iv) Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction etc.
(v) Foreigntechnical collaborations.

Place:Ahmedabad
Date: 9th May, 2015'

Sd/­
Name of Company Secretary in Practice: Chetan R. Shah

F.C.S.No.: 2703
C. P.No.: 4253
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

7. Details of CSR activities undertaken during the year (2014-15)
a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year - Rs. 53.86 lakh.
b. Amount unspent - Nil.
c Manner in which the amount spent during the year·
Sr.No.& CSR Sedor in Projects I pr~rammes Amount outlay Amount spent on Cumulative Amount
Date adivey identified which 1. Local area others (budget) theproject1 spend upto spent:

the Project is 2.Speci~the state I projectl program Subheads: the reporting Directlthrough
covered distnct( ameof the 1.Directexpend.ureperiod. implementingagency•

DistricUs, State/s where programmewise onproject, (Rs. inlakh)projecV programme was (Rs.in lakh) 2.0verheads·
undertaken (Rs.in lakh)

1 GPCBWorld Environment Local, Gujarat. 0.10 0.10 0.10 Ankleshwar
04/0612014 Environment Day Industrial Association

Donation to
PRAVARA

2 MedicalTrust. Health Care Ahmednagar,
50.00 50.00 50.00 PRAVARA

06/0812014 Loni Budruk, Maharashtra Medical Trust
District
Ahmednagar

3 K.C.Mahindra Education Local, Maharashlrs 340 3.40 3.40 K.C.Mahindra
24109/2014 Education Trust Education Trust

UnijedWayOf
4 MumbalFor UnijedWayOf

24/09/2014 Nanhi Kali Education Local, Maharashtra 0.60 0.60 0.60 MumbaiFoundation

5 Ankleshwar AnkleshwarRotaryRotary Education local, Gujarat. 0.11 0.11 0.1125/09/2014 Welfare Trust WelfareTrust

Ankleshwar Ankleshwar
Industrial Industrial

6 Development Education Local,Gujaral. 1.00 1.00 1.00 Development1510112015 SocietyMobile Society
Education Van

7 Smt. R. D. Gardi Woman Smt. R. D.Gardi
25/0312015 Bhavnagar Siree Empowermen Bhavnagar, Gujarat 0.75 0.75 0.75 Bhavnagar Stree

Kelvani Mandai Kelvani Mandai

Total 55.96 55.96 55.96

• Details of implementingAgency:

8. The company has spent more than 2% of the Average Net Profit (INR) of the last 3 financial years.

9. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee:
The implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy by the Company is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the
Company.

Sd/-
Rajendra V. Gandhi
(Managing Director &
Member CSR Committee)

Sd/-
Rejeev M. Pandia
(Chainman CSR Committee)

Sd/-
Harsh R. Gandhi
(Executive Director &
Member CSR Committee)
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GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION POLICY Annexure 8

This Nominationand RemunerationPolicy is being formulated incompliancewtlh Section 178ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 readalongwith
the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May,
2015.

Definitions:
1) "Remuneration" means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes

perquisitesasdefinedunder the Income-taxAct, 1961;
2) "KeyManagerialPersonnel"means:

i) ManagingDirector,orChief ExecutiveOfficeror Managerand intheir absence,aWhole-time Director;
ii) ChiefFinancialOfficer;
iii)CompanySecretary;and
iv) suchotherofficer asmay be prescribed.

3) "SeniorManagerialPersonnel"mean the personnel ofthe companywhoaremembersof itscore managementteamexcluding
Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent to President,Vice Prisident
andabove. Unlessthe context otherwise requires,words and expressions used in this policy and notdefined hereinbutdefined in
the CompaniesAct, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

Objective:
The objectiveofthe policy is to ensure that,
o The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors, KMP and senior
managerialpersonnelofthe quality required to runthe companysuccessfully;

o Relationshipof remunerationto performance isclear andmeetsappropriate performancebenchmarks;
o Remunerationto directors, key managerial personnel and seniormanagement involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflectingshortand long-term performance objectivesappropriateto theworkingofthe company and itsgoals;

o To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel and to
providefor reward(s) linkeddirectly to their effort, performance,dedicationand achievement relating to the Company'soperations;

o Toretain,motivateand promote talent and to ensure longtermsustalnabllityoftalented managerial persons andcreatecompetitive
advantage;

o To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel and
evaluationoftheirperformance.

Roleofthe Committee:
The roleofthe NRCwill be the following:
• Toformulatecriteria for determining qualifications, positiveattributesand independenceofa Director.
• Toformulatecriteria for evaluation of IndependentDirectorsand the Board.
• To identify personswho are qualified to become Directors and to identify personswho may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordancewith the criteria laid down in this policy.

• Tocarryoutevaluation of Director'sperformance.
• Torecommendto the Boardthe appointment and removalofDirectors andSenior Management.
• Torecommendto the Boardpolicy relating to remunerationfor Directors,KeyManagerial Personneland SeniorManagement.
• Todevisea policyonBoarddiversity,composition and size.
• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and I or enforced by any statutory notification,
amendmentor modification, asmaybe applicable.

• Toperformsuchother functions asmay be necessaryor appropriatefor the performanceof its duties.

Appointment ofDirector, KeyManagerial PersonnelandSeniorManagement
a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,qualification, expertise and experience ofthe person for appointment as

Director,KMPorat SeniorManagement level and recommendhis I herappointment, as perCompany's Policy.
b) A personshould possess adequate qualification, expertiseand experience for the posltlon he I she is considered for appointment.

The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient I
satisfactoryfor the position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained the age of
seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this positionmay be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
theapprovalof shareholders by passinga special resolution.
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

3) Remunerationto KeyManagerial PersonnelandSeniorManagement:
a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay in

accordancewith theCompany's Policy.
b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund,

pensionschemes,etc. as decided from to time.
c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and performanceof the Key

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

Implementation
The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement and for better
implementationofthis policy asconsidered appropriate.
The CommitteemayDelegateany of its powers to one ormoreof itsmembers

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

1. As required by the provisions of Schedule IV to the Act and the provisions of Clause 49, the Company is required to develop a
FamiliarizationProgrammeforthe IndependentDirectorsofthe Company.

2. TheCompanywill impart Familiarization Programmefor new IndependentDirectors inductedon the Boardofthe Company.
3. The Familiarization Programme of the Company will provide information relating to the Company, the type of market and

geographiesinwhich theCompany operates, businessmodelofthe Companyetc.
4. Theprogrammealso intends to improve awareness olthe IndependentDirectors on theirroles, rights, responsibilitiestowards the

Company. Further, the Familiarization Programme should also provide information relating to the financial performance of the
Company and budget and control process of the Company. The Managing Director or such other authorized officer(s) of the
Companyshall lead the Familiarization Programmeonaspects relating to business I industry.The Chief FinancialOfficer or such
other authorized officer(s) of the Company may participate in the programmefor providing inputs on financial performanceof the
Companyand budget, control process,etc.

Annexure - A

Framework for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

As per the provisionsof Clause 49, the Nomination and RemunerationCommittee (the "Committee") shall lay down the evaluation criteria
for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. Further, in terms of Clause 49, the Board is required to monitor and
review Board Evaluation Framework. This Framework shall contain the details of Board's self-evaluation framework (including all
Committeesof theBoardand individual Directors).
The Board is committed to assessing its own performanceas a Board inorder to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its
functioning.Tothat end,the Committee shall establish the followingprocesses for evaluation of performanceof IndependentDirectorsand
the Board:

1. Once a year, the Board will conduct a self-evaluation. It is the responsibility of the Chairman of the Board, supported by the
CompanySecretaryofthe Company,to organize the evaluation processand act on its outcome;

2. TheCommitteeshall formulate evaluation criteria for theBoardand the IndependentDirectorswhich shall bebroadlybasedon:
2.1 Knowledgeto performthe role;
2.2Timeand level of participation;
2.3 Performanceof dutiesand level of oversight; and
2.4Professionalconductand independence.

3. The BoardI IndependentDirectors shall be asked to completethe evaluation forms and submillhe sameto theChairman.
4. In terms of Section 134 of the Act, the Directors' Report should include a statement indicating a manner in which the Board has

doneformal annualevaluation of its own performance, performanceofCommittees and individual Directorsof theCompany.

Annexure- B
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

Sharehokling at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during the
For Each afthe Top 10 Name of Shareholder aftha year year

Sharehok1ers
No. of % of total shares of No. of % of total shares of the
shares the comDany shares company

1)Anil Kumar Goel 20600 1.55
2)Divya Atul Desai 34875 2.62
3)Ena~ee Consultancy 58624& trading Co. LLP 4.40
4)Harish V Gandhi 32558 2.44

At the End of the year (31.03.2015) 5)Harsh R Gandhi HUF 22000 1.65
6)Mammen Philip 37816 2.84
7)Meera Philip 81666 6.12
8)Nayna R Gandhi 44105 3.31
9)Rajendra V Gandhi 46750HUF 3.51
10)Rashmi M Gandhi 50209 3.77

v) Shareholdina of Directors and Ke Managerial Personnel KMP):

Name of Directors I Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during the
For Each of the Directors and KMP aftha year yearKMP No. of % of total shares of No. of % of total shares of the

shares the company shares company
1)Rajendra V Gandhi 22315 1.67
2)Harsh R Gandhi 57535 4.32
3)Mahesh V Gandhi 62500 4.69
4)Dr. Peter Philip 1333 0.10
5)B.T. Doshi 2310 0.17

At the beginning of the year 6)Rajeev M Pandia 0 0.00(01.04.2014) 7)Nikhil M Desai * 16995 1.27
8)Atul S Desai - 9125 0.68
9)Apurva R. Shah 0 0.00
10)Ganesh A

266 0.02Ghangurde (KMP)

1)Rajendra V Gandhi
08.08.2014 (market
purchase) 10 0.00 22325 1.67
12.12.2014 (market
purchase) 10 0.00 22335 1.68

Date wise Increasel decrease in 2)Harsh R Gandhi 0 0.00
Share holding during the year 3)Mahesh V Gandhi 0 0.00

specifying the reasons for increasel 4)Dr. Peter Philip 0 0.00
decrease (e.g. allotmentl transferl 5)B.T.Doshi 0 0.00

bonusl sweat 6)Rajeev M Pandia 0 0.00
equity etc): 7)Nikh~M Desai *

07.11.2014(market
sale) -900 -0.07 16095 1.21
8)Atul S Desai- 0 0.00
9)Apurva R Shah 0 0.00
10)Ganesh A
Ghangurde (KMP) 0 0.00
1)Rajendra V Gandhi 22335 1.68
2)Harsh R Gandhi 57535 4.32
3)Mahesh V Gandhi 62500 4.69
4)Dr. Peter Philip 1333 0.10
5)B.T. Doshi 2310 0.17

At the End of the year (31.03.2015) 6)Rajeev M Pandia 0 0.00
7)Nikhil M Desai" 16095 1.21
8)Atul S Desai" 9125 0.68
9)Apurva R Shah 0 0.00
10)Ganesh A 266 0.02
Ghangurde (KMP).reslqned w.e.f. 4th Februaty, 2015
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GRP LIMITED GRP'~-=~~~~~~---------------------------IMPACT POSITIVE

C. Remuneration to Kev Manaoerial Personnel other than MD IManaaer f WTD
Ke Mana erial Personnel

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Ganesh A. Ghangurde· Chief Financial

Officer & Company Secretary
1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the 7,192,560
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2)

Nilof thelnccme-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3)of the Income- tax Act. Nil
1961

2 Stock Option Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission Nil

- as % of profit Nil
- others, specify ... Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil
Total 7192560
Ceilina as oer the Act Not anolicabie

VII. Penalties J Punishment I Comnnundinn of Offences:
Section Details of Penalty I

Type afthe Breit Punishment I Authority (RDI NCLTI Appeal Made, if any

C~:f!niDescription Compounding Court) (Give details)

ACompanv
Penahy Nil

Punishment Nil
Comcoundlnc Nil

B Directors
Penalty Nil

Punishment Nil
Comooundlnc Nil

C Other Offlcers in Default
Penahy Nil

Punishment Nil
Comnnundinn Nil

•
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

8, a) Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees, other than the managerial personnel, in the
financial year 2014-15 : 11,9%

b) Averagepercentage increase inthe managerial remuneration inthe financial year 2014-15 : 12%
c) The above percentage increase in the salaries of employees including those of managerial personnel in the financial year

2014-15 iscommensuratewith the past trend, natureolthe industryand overall performanceoltha company,

9, Rajendra Gandhi, Managing Director and Harsh Gandhi, Executive Director are entitled to receive commission based on the
net profits of the company during the financial year. Net profits are calculated as per Section 198 of the CompaniesAct, 2013
and the commission payable to each of the above two directors is subject to a limit of 1% of such net profrt or twelve months'
salary,whichever Is less, in the financial year,

Rajeev Pandia, an Independent Non-Executive Director is paid commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the
company during the financial year, Net profits are calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013,

to.None of the employees,who are not directors of the company, has received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director
duringthe financial year 2014-15,

11,The Board of Directors hereby affirm that the remuneration paid during the financial year 2014-15 to directors, key managerial
personnelandseniormanagement employees of the company is asper the remuneration policy olthe company,

tz.statemeot for the financial year 2014-15 pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunerationof Managerial
Personnel)Rules,2014,

Name Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi Ganesh Ghangurde Hemant Kaul
President & VicePresident

Designation Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer (Marketing&
& Company Secretary BusinessDevelopment)

Remuneration
82,36,800 1,23,41,566 71,92,560 73,06,198received (Rs,)

Nature of Contractual Contractual Non Contractual Non Contractualemployment

Qualifications B.Tech (liT) Science Graduate
B,Com,LL.B., B.Com., MBAACA,ACS

Experience (Years) 43 17 35 24

Date of
commencement 3rd August,1974 1st October, 2001 14thAugust, 1984 4th June, 2012
of employment
Age (Years) 65 37 56 46

Last employment held Ashok Export House Boston Consulting HCC Ltd. Birla Tyres (Kesoram
Group Industries Ltd.)

Percentageof 1.68 4.32 Not applicable Not applicableEquity shares held

Names of Mahesh V. Gandhi, RajendraGandhiHarsh Gandhi & Nil NilRelateddirectors Nayna Gandhi & NaynaGandhi
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GRP LIMITED GRP'~~~~~~~=----------------------------IMPACT POSITIVE

B) Details in respectof adequacy of internal financial controlswith referencetothe financial statements:

Directorsof your Companyhave laid downanadequate internalfinancial control system comprising of planolthe organizationand
all the coordinatemethods and measures adoptedwith a business to safeguard its assets, check the accuracy and reliabilityof its
accounting data, promote operational efficiency, encourage adherence to prescribed managerial policies, compliance with
applicable lawsand regulationsand preventionand detectionof errorsand frauds.

The importantelementsolthe internal financial control systemare:
1.Planning
2. Budgeting
3.Operatingandmeasurement
4. ReportingandAnalysis

Variouscontrol techniquesare in place such as prevention,detectionandcorrection.

Controlactivitiescompriseof:
1)TopLevelReviews
a) Top Management Committee reviews the results of various areas of performance, comparing those results with budgets,

competitor analysis and other benchmark measurements.
b) Reviewmeetingsare conducted by the ExecutiveDirectorand the CFOandwith the HeadOfDepartments at HeadOfficeon

aweekly basis.
2) Direct FunctionalManagement
All the functional heads are reviewing the operational reports on a daily basis and corrective action is taken up immediately
wherever necessary.

3) PhysicalControls
Physical verification of inventories and cash is done on a monthly basis and fixed assets is conducted every year to cover all
assetsonce inthree years at HOand at all locations.

4) ComplianceControls
ComplianceOfficer reviews the Compliance Reportsent byconcernedHeadof Departments in the Organization.

5)AccountingandAdministrative Controls
a) Dutiesaredividedor segregatedamong different people to reducethe riskof inappropriate actions.
b)Transactionsare executed inaccordancewith management'sgeneral or specific authorization.
c) Transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally

acceptedaccounting principles.

There is an effective Risk Management Program as an important component of Internal control. At each level and function in the
organization, risks are identified and assessed. Measures to mitigate risks are noted and implemented. Risks for each function and
measures are evaluated and discussed at the review meetings on a monthly basis by the Head of Departments at Head Office with
the TopManagementand the same is updated and·presentedto the Boardon aquarterly basis.
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

Reoporton other Legaland Regulatory Requirements
10 As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015', issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section

(11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of
the Companyas we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11. As required bySection 143(3) olthe Act, we report that
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessaryforthe purposes of our audit.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the booksof account;
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the

Act, readwith Rule7olthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.
(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2)olthe Act.)

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us:
L The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on its financial position in its financial

statements asreferred to Note 31 to the financial statements.
ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2015, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for

material foreseeable losses,if any,on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
iiLThere has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

bythe Companyduring the year ended March 31, 2015.

ForA. B.Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:l06473W

Place:Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

RajeshS.Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 017844
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According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no
other statutory dues than mentioned in the aforesaid list which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(c) The amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund has been transferred to such fund
withinthe stipulated time inaccordance with the provisionsofthe CompaniesAct,1956and the rules made thereunder.

(viii) The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the
financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to bank. The company has not taken any loan from financial institution nor have isuued any
debenture.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others
from bankor financial institutions.

(xi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loan have been applied, on an overall
basis, forthe purposes for which they were obtained.

(xii) On our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have come across a cyber fraud on the
Company which has resulted in wrong remittance of USD 6.38 lakhs equivalent to Rs. 398.98 lakhs being made to an
unauthorised accountof an unknown person byanoverseacustomer.

Other than aforesaid fraud on the company, there is no fraud on the company or by the company is noticed or reported
during the year norwe have been informed of any suchcasebythe company.

ForA. B.Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106473W

Place:Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

Rajesh S.Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 017844

51



SlOZ'A"Vol410£:al"O
!eqwnV\l:i3Jeld

SIOl'AeV\l4l0£:a~ea
!E!qwnLi\l:aJE!ld

AletclJJasAuedwoJ
'8JClJYlOlepueu!~la!4J"8luaplscUd

apJnSUelf9'fI4saueg
17vSLIO-oud!4SJaqwClVII

J<3U1Jed

4ellS'SlfsafE!'I:I JopaJ!(Jah\.lnJaX3
!4pueg'l:l4SJ!H

M£Lv90t-ouUO\.leJ1S!~a'tl WJ!~I'itJI
SlUelUnOJJVpaJalJE!4J

sa~e!Joss'dIj!POW'8''VJO~

erepuaaalOlJodal:lmoredS'rJ
'SlUaWi31elSlepueu~a41lolJedleJllalU!uecuesaicuSu!AuedwoJJeaYl

J01JaJ!Ollu!8eue~
!IfPueg1\eJpuafe'l:l

9P-t

sg'Z1Z'PZZS'ZOE'EZ

£1'EEE'619'P£6'S
6£'SP]9S-oJEII
PI'9Z9SE'PZPOZ
P8'LEZOZ'98]6]
SS'L66'P9Z'8PO'S8]
Lr9ZE'En'SOO'EL]
80'080'09]

Is'6LS'171tZ'SZE'171
9HZSt
t8'E08LS'£tL17t
St'E1799'8Sst
8S'88£Z9'L09Zt
vI'LL91'L811
L9'£PS'n0l't98'1111

saasselUaJJnJJ0410
seoueepepuesueojWJallJ04S

saauejeg>lues"84SE!)

si3lqell.!i3JcuapeJl
Sa!J01UaAul

siuauusaxutlUi3JJn)

s~ass'flUaJJn)

saasseiuanrcuou;0410
saouexpepuesueotLUJi318uOl

sauaunsaeurlUC:UJnjUON

ssaJSoJd-U!-)jJOMlel!de)­
slassealq!SUelUI-
Slasse<llq!SUel-

siassepax!.:!
sl,assel,uaJJnl-UON

Sl,aSSV
S9'Ztz'PZZS'ZOE'EZ
S£'££S'S££'P£17'S
£6'Ot£pn££tt
Zl'698'tU'L98'tat
6eLL8']9,'S£Q'Z6
]6'6]S'PtrOpz'p8

osszo'sZn8s'E
98'179]17S'OnL
00'0]00'0]9
P8'6LP'Z69'P6£'ZS
08'OZP'Z6r9PO',P

EP'6ss'01£O'£17Z'n
Ot'9ZP'O,pe£tt'tt£
££Ht£nnZ

SUO!S!(\OJdWJallJol1S
sa!-l!l!qe!llUaJJn)Jal11Q

serqexedape.q
S'JU!MOJJOquuainoqg

s;J!-I!l!qe!llUoiIJJnJ

SUO!s!AOJdWJal.'Juo1
sa~!I!qe!lWJ<ll.'JUOIJa41Q

(lau)sa!-l!l!qe!lxelpaJJi3Jaa
SSU!MOJJOquuaiSU01
5a~!l!qe!lluaJJnJ-UON

snjdmspuesal\Jasa~
lellde)aJel1S

spun!,SJap10llaJe4S
sa~!l!qe!lpueAl!nb3

PIOZ-EO-IE
:aesV

sIOZ-EO-IE
IeSIf

(l.l'l1!1Ull)
StOZ'HJlIII1III1StE111SII1HHS3JN1I1II8

3AIliSOdlJVd~1

03.1111\111d~~



GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSSFORYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

24

(f In lak.hl
Year ended Year ended
31-1l3-2015 31-03-2014

34,704.46 31,527.24
1,148.01 1,125.25

33,556.45 30,401.99
390.56 477.16

33,947.01 30,879.15
706.18 203.07

34,653.19 31,082.22

17.770.90 14,640.40

14.89 (116.60)
4,343.76 3,551.72
495.90 695.98

1,472.04 1,244.42
9,574.71 9,290.00

33,672.20 29,305.92

980.99 1,776.30

121.16

1,102.15 1,776.30

1,102.15 1,776.30

Note

Revenue:
Gross Sales
less: Excise duty
Net Sales
Other operating income
Revenue from operations (net)
Other income

22

23

Total revenue
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-In-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

25

26
27
28
29
30

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax

Add: Exceptional items

Profit before extraordinary items and tax

Extraordinary items

42

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Mat credit entitlement
Deferred tax
(Excess) / Short provision of earlier years

(75.56)
58.90

375.00
(76.90)
396.01
(0.41)

232.00

Profit (Loss) for the period 886.81 1,08Z.60

Earnings per equity share ( of ~ 10/- each)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

39
66.51
66.51

81.20
81.20

Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajendra V Gandhi
Managing Director

Rajesh S. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Harsh RGandhi
Executive Director

Ganesh A Ghangurde
President & Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

•
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015
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GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in lakh)

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in a Lakhs,except for per share data and asotherwise stated. Certain amounts that are required to
be disclosedand do not appear due to rounding off, are detailed in note.

General company profile:
GRPlimited (the 'Company') is engaged mainly in Reclaim Rubber. Its other business include Power generation from Windmill, Manufacturing of
Thermo Plastic Elastomersand Punch& Split products. TheCompany hasmanufacturing plants in India and sales in Domestic aswell as International
market. The Company is a public limited company and is listed on the BombayStock Exchange (BSE)and National Stock Exchange (NSE).

1 Significant Accounting Policies:
(A) Basisof accounting:

The financial statements are prepared in accordancewith Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis.GAAPcomprises mandatory Accounting Standards asprescribed under Section 133 of the CompaniesAct,
2013 ('Act') read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting
policies havebeen consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those used in the previous year exceptwhere a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto
in use.

All the assetsand liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set-out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Basedon the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processingand the realisation in cashand cashequivalent, the company hasascertained its operating cycle lessthan 12months.

(8) Dividend on investment In subsidiary companies:
Thecompany recognizesdividend asincome only when the rightto receive the same isestablished by the reporting date.

(C) Accounting Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)requires management to
makeestimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsand liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any difference between the actual result and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialised. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively
in current and future periods.

(D) Fixedassets& Depreciation
(i) Tangible fixed assets

Fixedassetsare stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable to cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving atthe purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
assetbeyond its previously assessedstandard of performance. All other expenseson existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such
expensesare incurred.

Exchangevariation arising from repayment / restatement of the long term debts / borrowings in foreign currencies for acquisition of fixed
assetsiscapitalised in terms of the option exercised by the company asper the MCAcircular Notification no. G.S.R.378(E)dated 11 th May,
2011 and further amended by pursuant to circular no. 25/2012 dated 9th August, 2012 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Gains or
lossesarising from derecognition of fixed assetsaremeasured asthe difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assetand are recognized in the statement of profit and losswhen the asset isderecognized.

(il) Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on fixed assetsisprovided on straight line method forthe period for which the assetshave been used asunder:
1) Depreciation on assets is provided over the useful life of assets as prescribed under schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.
2) Effective 1st April, 2014, the company depreciates its fixed assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II

of the Act, asagainst the earlier practice of depreciating at the rates prescribed in schedule XIVof the CompaniesAct, 1956.
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3) Plant & machinery which have worked for more than single shift, depreciation is provided for accordingly asper rate prescribed in
schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(4) Leasehold land is amortised overthe period of lease.

(iii) Intangible Assetsand Amortisation
IntangibleAssets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.The amortisation period and the amortisation method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is Significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gain or lossesarising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible assetare determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and loss. The amortisation rates used are:
Asset
ComputerSofiware
Copyrights

Period of amortisation
6years
10years

(E) Impairment of Assets:
An asset istreated as impaired when the carrying cost of assetexceedsits recoverable value. An impairment loss ischargedto the Profit and
LossAccount in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if
there hasbeenachange in the estimate of recoverable amount.

(F) Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costsdirectly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualified assetsare capitalized aspart of the cost of
the respective asset.The borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is being netted off against any income arising on temporary investment of
those borrowings. All other borrowing costsare recognizedasan expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(G) GovernmentGrantsand Subsidy:
Special capital incentive and subsidy received from the government for setting up or expansion of an industrial undertaking in
undeveloped areaof state, iscredited to Specialcapital incentive and subsidy account under capital ReserveAccount.

(H) Investments:
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.
long term investments are carried at cost. However provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. Current
investments arevalued at cost or market value whichever is lower.

(I) Taxes:
Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes. Provisions for current income tax (induding Wealth tax) is made at
current tax rates based on assessable income/wealth. The Company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing
difference resulting from the recognition of items in the financial statement and in estimating its current tax provision. Deferred
tax assets are recognized if there is a reasonable certainty of realisation. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognized in the Profit & loss Account in the period in which it hasbeen enacted.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised in accordance with the Guidance Note on "Accounting for credit
available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961" issued by ICAI. MAT credit is recognised as an
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. At each balance sheet date the company re-assessesMAT credit assets to the extent they become reasonably certain or
virtually certain of realisation, asthe casemay beand adjusts the sameaccordingly.

(J) Inventories:
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsolescence I if any. Cost of Inventories
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comprises of cost of purchase I cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and
condition. Cost of raw materials, stores & spares, packing materials are determined on weighted averag basis. However raw materials are
written down to realisable value only if the cost of the related finished goods isnot expected to recover the cost of raw materials.

Work in - progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work in progress and finished
goods is determined on absorption costing method which include cost of conversionand other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Exciseduty is included in the value of finished goods.

(K) Income / ExpensesRecognition:
i) Domestic Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods from factory and Export Sales on transfer of significant risk & rewards of

ownership of suchgoods. Salesare disclosed net of salestax /Value added tax, discounts and salesreturn asapplicable.
ii) Income from Powergeneration isaccounted on the basisof certification ofGujarat Electricity Development Authority.
iii) Commission expenses on sales (other than consignment sales) is accounted on realisation of sales proceeds and

commission on consignment salesisaccounted on receipt of statement of consignment sale.
iv) Rentalsand all other expenses in respect of leasedassetsare treated asrevenue expenditure.
v} Thecompany accounts for exciseduty rebate, duty entitlements and focus benefits on exports on accrual basis.
vi} Interest income is recognized on atime proportion basistaking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.
vii) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receivedividend isestablished.

(L) Foreign currency&. derivative transactions:
i} Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreigncurrency monetary items are restated atthe rateasofthe date of BalanceSheet.
ii) In case of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilities, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange

rate on the date of inception of a forward contract is recognised as income or expense and is amortised over the life of the
contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognised as income or
expense for the period. The objective of these derivative instruments is to reduce the risk or cost to the company and is not
intended for trading or speculation purposes.

iii} Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit
and loss account except in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets in line with notification dated 11th May, 2011 and further amended and issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

iv} Exposureon account of CrossCurrency swapsentered into by the company isaccounted on basisof mark to market loses,if any.

(M) Employees Benefits:
LongTerm Employee Benefits:
a) DefinedContrlbution Plans:

Provident Fund
The company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous
ProvisionsAct, 19S2,which is a defined contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized asan expense in the period in
which servicesare rendered by the employee.

b) Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity

The company has a defined benefit employee retirement scheme in the form of gratuity trust. The Trustees of the scheme have
entrusted the administration of the related fund tothe Life InsuranceCorporation of India (lIC). Chargefortheyear isdetermined on the
basisof actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, asat the date of the balance sheet. Actuarial Gains/losses, if anyare
recognised in the statement of profit & loss.Contributions were deposited with the LlCbasedon intimation received bythe company.

ii) leave Encashment
Provision for leave encashment , which is a defined benefit, is made based on actuarial valuation done by an independent
agency of notified actuaries by using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial Gains / Losses, if any are recognised in the
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iii} Superannuation
The Company has Superannuation Plan for its executives - a defined contribution plan. The Company makes annual
contribution of the covered employees' salary, subject to maximum of a 1 lakh per employee, for the executive opting for the
benefit. The plan is managed by a Trust and the funds are invested with Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group
Superannuation Scheme. Annual contributions as specified under the Trust deed are paid to the life Insurance
Corporation of India and recognised asanexpenseoftheyearin which the liability is incurred.

Short TermEmployee Benefits:
Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during
which servicesare rendered by the employee.

(N) Lease:
Lease agreements where the risk & rewards, incidents to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognised
asoperating lease.Leaserent under operating leaseare recognised in the profit & lossstatement on straight line basis.

(0) Research&Development:
Capital Expenditure for Research & Development is capitalised when commissioned and included in the fixed assets. Revenue
expenditure on Research& Development ischarged in the period in which it is incurred.

(P) Provisions,Contingent Liabilitiesand Contingent Assets:
Provisions involved substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation asa result of past
events and it isprobable that there will be an outflow of resources.Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.
Contingent Assetsare neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

(Q) EarningperShare:
The company reports basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) in accordance with the Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Basic EPS has been
computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the accounting year. The diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity sharesoutstanding during the end of the year.

(R) Segment reporting:
Identification of segment
The company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments isbasedon the areas in which major operating divisions of the companyoperate.

Allocationof common costs
Commonallocable costsare allocated to each segmentaccordingtothe relative contribution of eachsegment to the total common costs.

Unallocated items
Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are notallocatedto any businesssegment.

Segment accounting policies
The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the company asawhole.

(5) Cashand cashequivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash-flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with anoriginal maturity of three months or less.
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Authorized
1,500,000 (March 31. 2014 : 1,500,000) equity shares of ~ 10 each

2 Share Capital:

150.00 150.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,333,333 (March 31, 2014 : 1,333,333) Equity shares of ~ 10 each fully paid-up 133.33 133.33

133.33 133.33

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
(i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares havlng a par value of ~ 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share.
(ii) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
(iii) In the event of liquid anon of the Company, the holders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(b) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, is set out below:

Au' An.
31-03·2015 31-03·2014

1,333,333 1,333,333
133.33 133.33

1,333,333 1,333,333
133.33 133.33

As a. 31-03-2014
No. of Shares " of Holdin,

81,666 6.12%
88,464 6.63%

An. Au'
31·03·2015 31-03·2014

53.30 53.30

0.Q1 0.Q1

41.67 41.67
94.98 94.98

6,000.00 5,000.00
1,000.00

6,000.00 6,000.00

Equity Shares:
At the beginning
• Number of shares
- Amount

At the end
Number of shares

• Amount

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5" afthe aggregate shares in the company
As at 31-03-2015

Mrs. Meera Philip
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Company llP

No. of Shares " of Holdin.
81,666
58,624

6.12%
4.40%

3 Reserves and Surplus:

Capital reserve
Special capital Incentive and subsidy
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Profit on re-Issue of forfeited shares
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Securities Premium account
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Balance as at the end of the year

General Reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss account
Balance as at the end of the year
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Balance as at beginning of the year
Profit for the year
Amount available for appropriation
Less:Appropriations:

Interim dividend
Dividend / Final dividend
Total dividend
Dividend tax
Amount transferred to general reserve
Transitional provision for: Depreciation charge

: Deferred tax on above

4,331.12
886.81

5,580.715,217.93

150.00

(~ in lakh)

4,498.11
1,082.60

20.00
193.33

150.00
30.54

28.23
(9.60)

213.33
36.26

1,000.00

4,331.12
Total appropriations
Balance as at end of the year

199.17
5,018.76

1,249.59

Total reserves and surplus 11,113.74 10,426.10

4 Long Term Borrowings:
As at As at

31-O~Z015 31-03·2014

Amount disclosedunder the head "Other current liabilities"
(refer note 10)

Asa. Asa.
31-03·2015 31-03·2014

Current Maturity

866.95 977.56
564.17 564.17

1,431.12 1,541.73

1.24 9.49
3.08 6.41

4.32 15.90
1,435.44 1,557.63
(1,435.44) (1,557.63)

1,046.19

Non-current portion
Secured:
Term Loans from Banks:
Foreign Currency loans from Banks

Rupee loans from Banks

Total Secured Borrowings

565.46
480.00

1,371.59
1,044.17

2,415.761,045.46

Unsecured:
loans from Banks
Deferred Sales Tax payments

Total Unsecured Borrowings

0.73
1.24
3.SO

2,420.80
0.73 5.04

Total long-term borrowings 1,046.19 2,420.SO

A Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:
1 Rupee loan from HDFCBank ltd. of'!' 324.171akh (March 31, 2014: '!'648.35Iakh) for Factory (Phase I)at Chlncholl, Solapur

First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets of the Company located at Chincholi, Solapur, both present and
future and by way of mortgage of land together with factory building and structures situated at Chincholi factory, Solapur.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from June 20, 2011, along with interest of 13 % p.a.

2 Rupee loan from HDFCBank ltd. of'!' 720.00 lakh (March 31, 2014: '!'960.00 lakh) for Factory (Phase II) at Chl"choll, Solapur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets of the Company located at Chincholi, Solapur, both present and
future and by way of mortgage of land together with factory building and structures situated at Chincholi factory, Solapur.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from April 30, 2013, along with interest of 13 % p.a.

3 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Udoff NIL (March 31, 2014:f 51.69Iakh) for Wind Mill project.
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills
receivables and entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from February 5, 2010, along with interest of 5 % p.a.
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4 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltdoff NIL (March 31, 2014 :f 95.73Iakh) for Kurla Office I premises at Mumbal

First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills
receivables and entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments beginning from February 5, 2010, along with interest of 5 % p.a.

5 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.of ~113.01Iakh (March 31, 2014 ; t' 216.42Iakh) for Kutla Office II premises at Mumbai
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills
receivables and entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from September 20, 2011 along with interest of 8 % p.a.

6 Foreign currency loan from Citl Bank, N.A. of ~ 1,319.40 lakh (March 31, 2014 : ~ 1,985.311akh) for Perundural factory, In Tamil Nadu
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assets of the Company located at Perundurai, Tamllnadu, both present
and future and by way of mortgage of land together with factory building and structures situated at Perundurai, Tamilnadu.

Repayable in 15 equal quarterly instalments beginning from April 22, 2013 along with interest @ 5.61% p.a.

B Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings:
1 Deferred sales-tax payments

Deferred sales-tax payment is interest free loan and repayable from financial year 2006-07 to 2016-17.

2 Loans from Bank
Vehicle loans are secured by vehicles under hypothecation with banks.
Loans are repayable in 36 monthly instalments from the date of respective loans.

Provision for Gratuity payment

12.19

2.97

10.40

An. An.
31-03-201$ 31-03-2014

2,419.27 2,497.37
19.69 28.71

2,438.96 2,526.08

44.27 46.24
44.27 46.24

2,394.69 2,479.84

An. Au'
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

10.00 10.00

10.00 10.00

As •• As ••
3l-()3-2015 31'()3·2014

NOrH:urrent portion

68.12 43.49

68.12 43.49
62.42 121.37

130.54 164.86

130.54 164.86

5 Deferred Tax Llablllties (Net):

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Depreciation
_Gratuity (Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid)

Deferred Tax Assets
- Provision for employee benefit

Total deferred tax liabilities (net)

6 Other Long-term Liabilities:

Security deposit received against the rental income

Total other long-term liabilities

7 Long-term Provisions:
As at As at

31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Provision for Employees Benefit expenses:
Provision for Leave encashment

Current Maturity

15.16 10.40

Mark to market provision on derivative instruments 98.66 74.34

Amount disclosed under the head "Short-term provisions"
(refer note 11 )

113.82
(ll3.82)

84.74
(84.74)

Total Long-term provisions
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8 Short-termBorrowings: Asa.
11:03-2015

As••
,1-03.2014

Secured:
Working Capital Loan payable on demand from banks
Foreign Currency loan
Rupee loan

3,598.70
580.96

3,898.60
443.86

4,179.66
Buyer's credit In foreign currency loan

Unsecured:
Deposits from Public
Deposits from Others 60.45

4,519.91
60.45

Total Short-tenn borrowings 4,240.11

3,674.08
224.52

117.00
60.45
In.45

la) Working Capital Loan from HDFCBank Ltd of\, 2738.321akh (March 31, 2014 : 'I' 2,865.81Iakh)
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills receivables
and entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Ib) WorklnBCapital loan from CIIiBank N. A. of 'I' 1,441.35 lakhs (March 31, 2014: 'I' 1,032.79Iakhs)
Secured by first pari passu charge in favour of Citi Bank N.A. by way of hypothecation of entire current assets including inventories and such other
movables, books debts, bills receivables and second subservient charge on entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of
the Company, both present and future.

(c) Buyer's credit In foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd off NIL (March 31, 2014:f 443.86Iakhs) for Capital Goods.
secured by exclusive charge on an imported recycling machine and all related equipments at Panoll factory. Repayable in one instalment due on
August 08, 2014.

(d) Deposits from Public (unsecured) carry interest @ 12.50% p.a. and Deposits from Others (unsecured) carry interest@ 12.00% p.a. with maturity
period of 12 months from the date of deposit.

(e) Fixed Deposits includes deposit accepted from the related parties of ~ Nil (March 31, 2014 : f 73.25 lakhs).

9 Trade Payables: Asa.
31=O:!-2015

Asa.
31.(J3..2Q14

Trade payables 2,035.16 1,877.79

Total trade payables 2,035.16 1,8n.79

Details of Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 ("MSMED Act").
To comply with the requirement of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company requested its suppliers to confirm it
whether they are covered as Micro, Small or Medium enterprise as is defined in the said Act. Based on the communication received from such suppliers
confirming their coverage as such enterprise, the company has recognized them for the necessary treatment as provided under the Act, from the date of
receipt of such confirmations and are disclosed in note below.

As••
31"()3-2015

Asa.
31-03·2014

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the year end.
b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and Remaining unpaid at the year end.
c) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the M5MED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.
d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the

168.74 116.17

appointed day during the year.
e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed

day during the year.
f) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made
g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company.
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10 Other Current Liabilities: Asa.
31-03-2015

An.
31-03-2014

Current maturities of Long-term debts (refer note 4)
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings
Unclaimed Dividend (refer note below)
Advances from customers
Vendors for Capital Goods & Services
Statutory dues
Others

1,435.44
38.10
11.85
41.15
70.41
154.73
116.04

1,557.63
50.18
11.73
17.23
79.90
149.13
3.32

Total other current liabilities 1,867.72 1,869.12
Note: There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31st March, 2015.

Current maturities of Long-term provisions of Employees Benefit expenses (refer note 7)
Provision for Leaveencashment
Provision for Gratuity payment

Other Provisions
Mark to market provision on derivative instruments
Proposed Dividend
Tax On Proposed Dividend
Provision tor taxation - Net ot advance tax paid of ~ 3,140.20 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : f 2,994.26Iakhs)

Asat Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

12.19 10.40
2.97
15.16 10.40

98.66 74.34
150.00 193.33
30.54 32.86
36.98

316.18 300.53

331.34 310.93

11 Short Term provisions:

Total short-term provisions

12 FixedAssets·
Gross Block Depreciatfon & Amortlsatfon Net BookValue

Particulars Asat Asa. As at Forthe DisposalI Transfer to Asa. Asa. Asat
Additions Disposal Retained

01-04-2014 31-03-2015 01-04-2014 period Discard earnings 31-03-2015 31-03-2015 31-03-2014

(a) Tangible Assets
Own Assets :
lease hold Land 557.43 557.43 24.36 6.00 1.52 31.88 525.55 533.07
Roads 491.43 13.98 505.41 30.17 68.81 29.44 128.42 376.99 461.26
Buildings 6,155.33 389.51 1470.65) 6,074.19 652.32 169.51 123.211 1.49 BOO.ll 5,274.08 5,503.01
Plant and Machinery 11,032.66 896.77 11,929.43 4,632.28 1,061.82 123.721 5,670.38 6,259.05 6,400.38
Furniture & Fixtures 489.01 4.46 1113.52) 379.95 105.26 48.24 124.341 1.32 130.48 249.47 383.75
Office equipments 153.12 19.05 11.04) 171.13 37.11 48.07 10.36) 17.00 101.82 69.31 116.01
Computer Hardware 128.31 12.00 140.31 81.88 28.37 0.78 111.03 29.28 46.43
Vehicles 153.19 153.19 53.43 21.89 0.40 75.72 77.47 99.76

Total (a): 19,160.48 1,335.77 1585.21 19911.04 5,616.81 1,452.71 147.91 28.23 7,049.84 12,861.20 13543.67
(b) Intangible Assets
Own Assets:
Computer Software 199.33 18.29 217.62 122.19 18.84 · 141.03 76.59 77.14
Copyrights . 11.06 11.06 0.49 · 0.49 10.57

Total (b), 199.33 29.35 . 228.68 122.19 19.33 · 141.52 87.16 77.14
Total a+b): 19,359.81 1,365.12 585.21 20,139.72 5,739.00 1,472.04 147.91 28.23 7,191.36 12,948.36 13,620.81

Previous Year: 18,443.26 1,120.60 204.06 19,359.81 4,524.26 1,244.42 29.68 5,739.00 13,620.81 13919.00
(e) capital Work-In·

progress
Factory Building 85.63 60.12
Plant & Machinery 51~:~ 3:;.12
Other Assets 5.34

Total (c): 607.62 388.58

Total fixed assets (net) 13,555.98 14,009.39
(a) Addition to fixed assets and capital work-in-progress includes exchange difference off 83.631akhs (March 31, 2014 r 431.83 lakhs) ansmg on

revaluation of foreign currency term loan and principal only swap rupee loans (POS) as per amended ASll (notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs).
(b) Additions during the year and capital work-in-progress include ~ 28.90 lakhs (March 31, 2014: ~ 15.74Iakhs) being borrowing cost capitalised.
(c) Interest earned on account of Principle only 5WAP (POS) loan amounting to ~ 41.20 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 59.64 lakhs) has been reduced from the cost of

the respective assets
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(d) In accordance with the provisions of Schedule 11of the Act, in caseaffixed assetswhich have completed their useful life as at 1st April, 2014, the carrying value

Inet of residual value) amounting to f 18.63 lakhs (net of deferred tax of f 9.60 lakhs) as a transitional provision has been recognised in the Retained Earnings
• Further, in case of assetsacquired prior to 1st April 2014, the carrying value of assets (net of residual value) is depreciated over the remaining useful life as
determined effective 1st April,2014

_Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year would have been lower by ~ 231.47 takhs, had the company continued with the previous assessment
of useful life of such assets.

(e) Vehicles include one car of the company acquired in the name of Director.

13 Non-current Investments:
Au,

31-OJ-2015
Au'

31-03-2014
Long term investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Trade Investment (unquoted)
Investment In subsidiaries:
50,000 (March 31, 2014 : 49,900) equity shares of ~ 10/- each fully paid up held in Grip Polymers ltd. 1.01 1.00

Other Investments (unquoted)
129,000 (March 31, 2014 : 129,000) equity shares of ~ 10/- each fully paid up held in Bharuch reo-aqua Infrastructure Ltd. 12.90
4,47,500 (March 31, 2014 : 292,500) equity shares of ~ 10/- each fully paid up held in Iris Ecopower Venture Pvt. ltd. 44.75

12.90
29.25

Total non-current investment 58.66 43.15

During the year the company has purchased 100 equity shares representing 0.20 % of the share of Grip Polymers limited, a subsidiary company.
The said shares were acquired on 01-07-14 an~ consequent the shareholding of GRPLimited in Grip Polymers limited is increased to 100%.

14 long-term Loans and Advances:
Au. Au'

31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Advances for Capital Expenditure 18.40 102.80

Other Advances & Deposits 272.77 265.40

Prepaid Expenses 3.89 2.71

loan to Subsidiary company 45.92

MAT credit entitlement 372.59 432.90

Totallong-tenn loans and advances 713.57 803.81

Other advances & deposits include deposit of ~ NIL (March 31, 2014 : ~ 15.75 lakhs) with a company in which some of the directors are interested.

Prepaid expenses include current maturity amount of ~ S7.22 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 59.04 lakhs) (refer note no. 20)

Considering the future profitability in the subsequent years, the company has recognised the "MAT credit entitlement"
as an asset by crediting profit and loss account for an equivalent amount and disclosed under "loans and Advances" in
accordance with the Guidance Note on "Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax" issued by ICAI.

Long term Deposit with Bank (Maturity more than 12 months)

Au' Au'
31:03-2015 31-03-2014

23.16
23.16

Au' Au'
'1-03-2015 31-03-2014

0.08 0.08

0.08 0.08

15 Other non-current assets:

Total other non-current assets

16 Current Investments:

Unquoted
7 years National Savings Certificates (Deposited with Central ExciseAuthority)

Total current investments
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17 Inventories:
Asa.

31-93-2015
Asa.

31-9}-2014
Stores and Spares
Packing Materials
RawMaterials (includes Rubber Scrap, Processoils and Chemicals)
Fuel materials
FMSlicence Stocks (at net realisable value)
Goods-in-process
Goods-In-transit
FinishedGoods

136.30
46.64

1,342.57
13.53
10.11

242.41
386.64
826.93

124.89
45.30

1,648.73
20.32
16.06
191.69
398.17
881.01

Total inventories 3,005.13 3,326.17

18 Trade Receivables:
Asa.

31~3-2015
Unsecured
Outstanding for more than six months

Considered Good
Considered Doubtful

10.86
0.17

9.23
(0.17)Less:Provision for bad & doubtful debts

11.03
(0.17)

Asa.
31-03-2014

9.06
0.17

10.86 9.06
Others
- Considered Good (refer note no. 40) 5,037.40

4,997.55Total trade receivables 5,048.26
4,988.49

19 Cash& Bank Balance
Asa.

31-03-2015
As at

31-03-2014

8.56 8.76
Cash& cash Equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with banks
(a) In Current accounts
(b) In CashCredit accounts
(c) In EEFCaccounts
(d) In deposit accounts (Maturity less than 3 months)
(e) In earmarked accounts

Undaimed dividend accounts (Refer Note below)
- Margin money deposits

95.37
36.32
21.73

11.85
12.37

237.84
177.64

14.79
54.74
50.87
94.21

11.73
2.74

229.08
Total cash and bank balance 186.20
Notes:
There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31-03-2015

20 Short-term Loans and Advances:

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
Other Advances & Deposits
Deposit with Central Excise
Current maturity of Prepaid Expenses
Advance Income-tax & Wealth-tax - Net of provisions ~ 3,177.18 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 2,945.82Iakhs)

As •• As ••
31:03-2015 31~3-2014

241.89 313.89
1.18 1.49

124.09 203.28
57.22 59.04

48.44
424.38 626.14Total short-term loans and advances
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GRP LIMITED GRP'~~~~~~~=----------------------------IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in lakh)
Asa.

31-93-201421 Other CUrrent Assets:
As at

31"'()3-2Dt5
106.86

6.15
197.55
S10.56

Year ended
31-03-2015

34,638.21
1,148.01

Total: 33,490.20

66.25
33,556.45

32,536.44
575.50
378.26

66.25

Year ended
31-03-2015

390.54

0.02
390.56

Year ended
31-<)3·2015

14.39
22.36
669.43
706.18

Yearen ed
31-03-2015

1,648.73
17,464.74
19,113.47
1,342.57

17,770.90

16,127.87
1,093.51
549.51

17,770.90
613.63
3.45%

17,157.27
96.55%

17,770.90

Accrued Income
Receivable from lie (Gratuity claim)
Forex Forward Contract (Net)

119.77
12.14
13.48

145.39Total other current assets

Year ended
31-03-201422 Revenue:

(i) Saleof products
Manufactured goods
less: Exciseduty

(ii) Trading of Goods

(iii) Power generation from Windmill
Total revenue
Manufactured Goods I Power Generation I Trading

Reclaim Rubber
Punch & Split Products
Thermo Plastic Elastomers
Trading of Goods
Power generation from Windmill

31,455.84
1,125.25

30,330.59
2.55

68.85
30,401.99

29,222.19
630.69
477.71

2.55
68.85

23 Other operating Income:
Year ended
31-03-2014

Export incentives
Baddebts recovered
Other Sales

434.47
4.29
38.40

477.16Total other operating Income

Yearend
31..(13-201424 Other Income:

17.07
10.80
175.20

Interest received
Rent Income
Net Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

203.07Total other income
Year ended
31-03-201425 Cost of material consumed:

Raw material consumed:
Opening inventories
Add: Purchases(including incidental expenses of t 672.341akhs, March 31, 2014 : t 693.48Iakhs)

less: Closing inventories

1,644.49
14,644.64
16,289.13
1,648.73

14,640.40
Total cost of material consumed
(a) Products consumed

Waste Rubber
- ProcessOils
- Other Oils and Chemicals
(b) Import and Indigenous consumptions

Imports
%

Indigenous

13,036.47
1,440.87
163.06

14,640.40
826.28
5.64%

13,814.12
94.36%

% 14,640.40
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26 ChangesIn Inventoriesof finished goods,work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Year en
31-03-2015

Year ended
31...(J3-2.014

Stock at the end of the year:
Finished goods
Goods-in-transit (Finished Goods)
Work-In-progress
Stock-in-trade
Stock at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods
Goods-in-transit (Finished Goods)
Work-In-progress
Stock-in-trade

826.93
386.64
242.41

881.01
398.17
191.69

Total (AI 1,455.98
881.01
398.17
191.69

1,470_87
928.47
244.86
176.71

4.23

Increase I (Decrease) In Stock Total (A - B) (14.89) 116.60
Total (B) 1,470.87

Finished Goods
Reclaim Rubber
Punch & Split Products
Thermo Plastic Elastomers

1,022.75
93.96
96.85

1,354.27

1,168.05
63.92
47.22

Work-In-progress

Reclaim Rubber

1,213.56

242.41

1,279_19

191.69
242.41 191.69

27 Employee Benefits expenses:
Year ended
31:03·2015

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident fund and Pension fund
Gratuity fund
Contribution to other funds
Welfare and other benefits

3,921.70
168.21
35.86
71.38
146.61

Yearended
31-03-2014
3,234.22
141.52
(0.99)
70.49
106.48

Total employee benefits expenses 4,343.76 3,551.72

(a) The disclosure required as per the revised AS15 is as under:
(i) Brief description of the plans.

The Company has various schemes for long term benefits such as provident fund, superannuation, gratuity and leave encashment. The Company's
defined contribution plans are Employees' Provident fund and Pension Scheme (under the provision of the Employees' Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952)since the company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions.

The employees of the company are also entitled to leave encashment and gratuity which are defined benefit pla."n;_._-:::-_-;-.,..-_--::-,-,..,--",,-_

(ii) Charge to the Profit and loss Account based on Contributions: Year ended Yearended
31·03·2015 31-03-2014

(iii) The liability for leave encashment and compensated absences (unfunded) as at year end is

Provident and Pension fund 168.21 141.52
~ 80.311akhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 53.89Iakhs).

LeaveEncashment Gratuity

As at As at
31-03·2015 31-03-2014(b) Disclosure for defined benefit plan based on actuarial report as on 31-03-2015 As at As at

31-03·2015 31=93-2014

Unfunded Funded

(I) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation
Interest cost
Current service cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss I (gain)
Closing defined benefit obligation

53.89 6Q.42 413.74 392.48
5.02 4.98 33.10 31.40
24.33 30.92 43.51 41.34

(21.23) (21.66) (19.15) (11.77)
18.30 (20.78) 4.25 (39.71)
80.31 53.89 475.45 413.74
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GRP LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

IMPACT POSITIVE

(~in lakh)

30 Other expenses: Year ended
31~3-2015

Year ended
31-03-2014

Manufacturing Expenses
PackingMaterial consumed
Stores and Spare Parts Consumed
Power,Fuel&Water Consumed:-

Power Consumption
- Fuel Consumption
- Water Consumption

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses:-
Plant & Machineries

- Factory Buildings

Sales & Distribution expenses
Ocean Freight
Marine Insurance
Export clearing and Other charges
Localfreight & Other charges
Other Selling and Distribution expenses
Administration &Other Expenses
Insurance
Vehicle Expenses
Printing& Stationery
Advertisements
Rent, lease Rent & Other Charges
Repairs to Other Assets
Retainer fees, Legalfees & Prof charges
Travelling & Conveyance
Postage, Telegram &Telephones
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Payment to Auditors:-

Audit fee
TaxAudit fee
Taxation matters and other expenses
Reimbursement of expenses

Board Meeting Fees
Commission to Director
Charity and donation
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Factory! Office Expenses
Office electricity expenses
Other Expenses
loss on Sale of Assets! Assets Discarded !Impairment
Variation in CEOon Stock of finished goods

3,570.21
892.61
44.51

813.55
430.66

772.53
419.88

3,310.76
901.08
43.67

237.30
28.31

250.86
14.92

6,017.16

1,485.41
6.83

432.67
615.21
89.23

2,629.35
51.30
88.14
35.02
14.61
28.26
44.88
159.42
172.37
56.94

5,713.70

1,597.38
6.40

437.02
499.24
129.04

2,669.08
57.14
77.33
11.49
15.77
28.60
51.60
143.31
133.73
44.06
0.17

7.00
2.25
5.86
0.21
5.44
12.00
0.02
55.96
43.49
15.02

138.08
0.53

(8.62)

6.00
1.50
2.26
0.20
5.83
20.75
32.65

35.13
14.67
146.38
86.42
(7.77)

928.20
9,290.00Total other expenses 9,574.71
907.22

31 Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the extend not provided for)
Asat

31'()3-Z015
266.90
16.60

267.93(a) Guaranteed by Banks not provided for (Net)
(b) letter of Credit
(c) Claims against the company (Including Sales tax, Exciseduty, etc.) not acknowledged as debts

- Maharashtra SalesTax
- ExciseDuty & Service Tax
-Income Tax liability

(d) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account.
(e) Employees dues not provided for

As a'
31-03-2014

0.74
196.31
635.77
35.48

0.52
168.40
69.00
75.37
0.25
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
n Summary of transactions with related parties other than ordinary transactions

Saleof Flat

(~ in lakh)

600.00
Sale of Furniture 65.00

C) Disclosure in respect of transactions which are more than 10%of the total transactions of the same
type with the related parties during the year

1 Purchase of Goods & Servkes
Alphanso Netsecure Private Limited 16.27

2 Remuneration Paid
Rajendra V Gandhi 82.37 95.90
Harsh RGandhi 119.28 89.40
GaneshA Ghangurde 71.93 95.21

3 Sitting Fees Paid
Mahesh V Gandhi 0.75 0.75

4 Dividend paid
Harsh RGandhi 8.34 9.49
Mahesh V Gandhi 10.73 12.77
Rajendra V Gandhi HUF 6.78 7.71
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Company LlP 8.50 14.60

5 Interest paid
Nehal RGandhi 0.09 1.23
Aayushi & Aashni Trust 0.12 1.44
Aarav Trust 0.10 1.48
Nehal Trust 0.17 2.13

6 Rent paid
Industrial Development and Investment Co. Pvt. ltd. 0.18 0.54

7 Deposit repaid
Nehal RGandhi 8.50 1.50
Aayushi & Aashni Trust 11.50
Aarav Trust 10.00 2.00
Nehal Trust 17.00

8 Deposit outstanding payable
Nehal RGandhi 8.50
Aayushi & Aashni Trust 11.50
Aarav Trust 10.00
Nehal Trust 17.00

9 Deposit outstanding receivable
Industrial Development and Investment Co. Pvt. ltd. 15.75

10 Sale of Flat
Rajendra V Gandhi 600.00

11 Sale of Furniture
Rajendra V Gandhi 65.00

71



z",'nl'tEO'ZL,'t
9,'176fl'llt
,I..tl8""09
zzez69'vt
zstottEn-gn

8t'60S'1Str')'S6't
ttoo'179£S'6Z
6v'IZE99'l617
06'Svl'O
8E't71t'1ZS'9lt7't

..-.......ZL'tL'Z'zt
9£"l98'986'10,'l
t>9'£880'86
99'Z590..t
£l'S59'9O9'OL6'"

9S'lZZ')'l9L'IlS'El
86'915'1:t6'808'1:
scsos89"651'1
69'9SZLtr'B'9l
£1'Z19'01:OL'L8Z'61

6S'ZSQ'tIS'988
tosss(9S'SLI
69'l6Z06'06Z

6Z'9U'lSl'lOl'l

6l'9LL't51'lOt'l
"5'9lL'1",Z'EOZ't
£8'ZSS'E6£'50£7
(68'6"')(OE"ZOE)
81'9Z1l'9E
VS'9lS'£8\f'tlS'l

lela!(a
alq~oll~un(P

SJ~4~0(J
JaMOd(q

Jaqqn'tjwjl!pa'tj(I!

UORepaJdaaAI
lelolia

alqeJolI~Un[p
5Ja4~O{J
JaMod{q

Jaqqn'tjW!I!'P~[e
(ssouJOJdUI)!JOMIl!:1Id~'Ulpnpul)aJltlfpuacfx3le~ldeJIII

lelol(a
sallmql!npall!':)(lUe-Un(p

51'lI.HO()
laMod(q

Jaqqo'tjWjl!l:li'l'tj(e
S8A!UQenluaw2asII

lel01(01
slassvp<lle)olle-un(p

SJiJlHOIj
JaMOd(q

Jaqqo'tjw!epa'tl[e
qMSVluawSasI

UOAeWJOjulJa\lW£

xe1J811V~YOJd
xe1paJJalao-
xelaWO:lUI-

:uOpexellOtUO!S!AOJd
XI!.laJOlaglYOJd

wallAJeu!pJOe.J1X3:55.11
WilliAJeulPJO1.QX3.,ltelit.fOJaglijOJd

IIIQOlqnS
$Ja410(J
JaMod(q

Jaqqn'tjw!epa'tjIe
(luawlastpeaWOJJ

~Jal-UIpueXtl'laJOjitq(~)S'SOlI(+)ly0Jdqlnsit1:t\uawh§Z

spoo!)8Ulpe.ll"8SJawOlsel3)!-lSeldOWJa41sapnpu!SJa4:!O••
spnpOJdllids"8lpund'JaqqruqumrasapnpulJaqqn'tjWlepa'tj.

anuaA81jluawlastaN
••SJa4~0()

JaMOd(q
•(AlnOaspx3JO~N)Jaqqoijw!epa'tj(e

anUaAa~luaw8ast
-etput~O~ulQunm:rvpilJa+le4;)jO;nnlpsUIa~lAqpanss!ItpJepUf:lS8u~uno::l::lVAqpaJ!nbaJse8u~odaJluaw8as

9Z'OBV
S9'99
l8'Z58'6Z

9Z'9LE
Sl'99
"'6'ttt'££

5tORtFlE
,....

Z9'5l
86'8£

Ot'LIZ

.aL
E6'LZt
8CtOE

°SlUnO::l,eJOpea4aA!+)0Ki5aJOlpallqapSI

aJnl!puadxaaAoqepueanUaI>OIJsalesu!papnpu!uaaq5e4II?!JaleWII!!JllueldlOI!dJOalesWOJlsl.ll1elLE'O~Joawo,u!sale~alli

spa[OJd01SMa41spJeMolpaJJn)u!aJnl!puadx3anuafla~(p)
sSaJ80JdU\l1JOMlel!deJ(;))

SlUawd!n~a)!MoIIIiUnl!UJOj's8u!Pl!ng1,10paJln:lU!aJn)!puadx3lel!de)(q)
(pas!lelldl!)MOUJeilAlselJO

ssaJ80JdUI)110Mlellde)S4>1eI86'8£~sapnpul)AJaullpe..-.J'8SlUawd!nb]1,10paJJn:}u!aJOllPuadx3Il!l!d!?')Ie)
:paJJn:lu!aJnl!pu;)dxaluawdol<JflaQIIIIl:}Jeasa'tjl018u!-luOOJJI;r'

&t6t=£6!tt
"...

Si&t&R
..... s~O~'H:>l:I't'IIII.LS~&030N3l:1Y:1A3H.Ll:IO::lS.LN311113.L't'.LS''t'I:>N't'NI::IO.LS3.LON

3AI.lISOd.l:::>Vdr41

03.LIWlld~E)



GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
V Non cash Expenditure other than Depreciation

(~in lakh)

iI) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Unallocable
e) Total

4 Information about SecondarySegments
Ii) Revenue & Sundry Debtors as per Geographical Markets

0.53 81.67

0.53

0.17
4.75
86.59

Revenue Trade Receivable

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013·14
9,411.38 9,220.28 1,613.98 1,871.64
24.145.07 21,181.71 3,434.28 3,125.91
33,556.45 30,401.99 5.048.26 4,997.55

Particulars
India
Outside India
Total

. - -
Iii) The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for Domestic Market and OVerseas Market. Hence separate figures for fixed assets I

additions to fixed assets cannot be furnished

36 Corporate SocialResponslblltty Expenditure : An.
31-03-2 15

An.
31-03-2014

a) Grossamount required to be spent by the company during the year.
b) Amount Spent during the year on:

55.96

In cash
yet to be

paid.., Total

f} Construction/acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 55.96 55.96

37 ExpensesI Earnings In foreign currency: Au.
31-03·2015

As at
31-03-2014

Itl RawMaterial
(iii Capital Goods
(Iii) Expenditure in foreign currency
(iv) Earning in foreign exchange in respect of Export of Goods ( F.O.B.value)

613.63
191.21
692.10

22,595.61

826.28
19.50

902.68
19,708.42

38 foreign currency exposures: As at
31:03=2015

As at
31-03-2014

(a) Foreign currency exposures that are hedged as at 31st March
Forward contracts
U5D
EURO

(Amount in Foreign
Currency (in lakh))

29.00 1.50
1,879.50
1,952.57

119.98
123.86

30.00 2.00

Asat
31-03-2015

Asat
31-03·2014

Asat
31·03·2015

Asat
31-03·2014

(b) foreign currency exposures that are not hedged as at 31st March
Total Receivables Includes sales proceedings
USD
EURO
G8P
Total Payables includes Imports, bank loans and interest payments
USD
EURO
G8P

(Amount In Foreign
Currency (in lakh))

0.47 0.32

230.13
(647.29)
42.78

1,463.15
1,488.65

31.59

3.87 24.55
(9.42) 18.23

53.00
27.00

67.43
30.35
0.63

3,320.21
1,817.94

4,042.10
2,507.44

63.24

39 Earningsper share : As II
1 . 1

Asa.
31-03·2014

Net Profit after tax for the year
ExcessProvisionfor tax for earlier years
Net profit attributable to Equity Shareholders
Number of equity sharesof ~ 10/· each.
Earningsper share- Basic
Earningsper share-Diluted

945.71
58.90

1,082_19
(0.41)

886.81
1,333,333

66.51
66.51

1,082.60
1,333,333

81.20
81.20
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of GRPLIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
1) We haveaudited the accompanyingconsolidatedfinancial statementsof GRPlimited (hereinafter referred to as the

'Company'), and its subsidiary and jointly controlled entity (hereinafter referred to as the 'Group'), to the attached consolidated
finanacial statement which comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies andother explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as'the consolidated financial statements').

Management's Responsibilltyforthe Consolidated Financial Statements
2) The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 (the 'Act')

with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance pf adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give atrue and fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Resposibillty
3) Our responsibility isto expressan opinion on these consolidated financial statements, basedon our audit.

4) While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rulesmade thereunder.

5) We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6) An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Beadof Directors, aswell asevaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

7) We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated 'financial statements.

8) We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Opinion
9) We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's Management in accordance with

the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, Accounting Standard (AS) 27 -
Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
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GRP LIMITED
IIIAPACT POSITIVE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETAS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015
(t in lakh)

Note
As at

314)~2015
As at

31-03-2014

Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Non-current Uabilities
long term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other long term liabilities
long term provisions
Current Uablllties
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short term provisions

2
3

133.33
11,141.25

133.33
10,453.19

4
5
6
7

11,274.58

1,046.19
2,394.69

10.00
130.54

10,586,52

2,420.80
2,479.83

10.00
164.86

8
9
10
11

3,581.42
4,240.11
2,035.31
1,869.46
331.27

5,075.49
4,519.91
1,877.93
1,869.44
310.93

8,476.15 8,578.21
0.06Minority Interest

Total Equity & Liabilities 23,332.15 24,240.28

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets
- Intangible assets
- Capital work-In-progress
Non current investments
long term loans and advances
Other non current assets

12 12,890.55 13,543.67
12 87.16 77.14
12 610.96 388.58
13 58.50 43.00
14 667.61 803.86
15 1.42 23.16

14,316.20 14,879.41

16 0.08 0.08
17 3,005.13 3,326.17
18 5,048.26 4,997.55
19 218.48 264.89
20 431.02 626.86
21 312.98 145.32

9,015.95 9,360.87

23,332.15 24,240.28

1- 46
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V Gandhi
Managing Director

Harsh RGandhi
Executive Director

Ganesh A Ghangurde
President & Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

Current Assets
Current investments

Inventories
Trade receivables
Cash & Bank Balances
Short term loans and advances
Other current assets

Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Assoelates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajesh S. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

CONSOLIDATEDCASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARENDED31ST MARCH, 2015
(t In lakh)

Year ended
31-03-2015

Year ended
31-03-2014

A Cash flow from Operating activities
Net profit before tax and extra ordinary items
Adjustmentsfor
- Depreciation
- (Profit) I loss on sail"of assets (Net)
- Wealth tax provision
- Interest (Netl
- Rent received
- Dividend received
- ExcessI Short Provision for earlier years

Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for
- (lncreasel/Decrease in Trade and other receivables
- (lncreesepbecrease InInventories
- Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payable

1,103.09 1,778.43

1,472.04 1,244.42
(120.64) 86.42

0.60 5.82
415.89 597.95
(22.36) (10.80)
(0.11) (0.33)
0.17

1,745.59 1.923.49
2,848.68 3.701.92

(128.15) (323.18)
321,03 (92.63)
295.70 123.92
488.58 (291.89)

3,337.27 3,410.03
(179.17) (579.43)
3,158.09 2.,830.60

18.50 19.33
660.23 87.97
22.36 10.80
0.11 0.33

20.97 (14.08)
(15.51) (29.15)

(1,544.21) (1,470.85)
(837.56) (1,395.66)

(1,730.70) (528.83)
(443.80) (628.16)
(193.21) (220.37)

(2,367.71) (1,3n.36)
(47.18) 57.58
238.78 181.20

191.60 238.78

8.61 8.76

100.72 15.74
36.32 54.74
21.73 50.87

94.20
24.22 14.47

191.60 238.78
28.30 49.27

Z19.9O 288.05

Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities

B cash flow from Investlna: activities
- Interest received
- Sale proceeds of fixed assets
- Rent received
- Dividend Income
- Investment in Fixed Deposit
- Investments
- Purchase of fixed assets
Net cash used in Investing activities

C Cash flow from financing activities
-loans borrowed (Net of repayment)
. Interest paid
- Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net lnaease I (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the besinning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the period
Cash and Bank Balances

A Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with banks
(a) In Current accounts
(b) In cash Credit accounts
(c) In EEFCaccounts
(d) In deposit accounts (Refer Note below)
(e) In earmarked accounts

B Other Bank Balance (maturity above 3 months)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajesh 5. Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V Gandhi
Managing Director

Harsh RGandhi
Executive Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

Ganesh A Ghansurde
President & Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEARENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~in lakh)

Exchangevariation arising from repayment I restatement of the long term debts / borrowings In foreign currencies for acquisition
of fixed assets is capitalised in terms of the option exercised by the company as per the MeA circular Notification no. G.S.R.378
(E)dated 11th May, 2011 and further amended by pursuant to circular no. 25 / 2012 dated 9th August, 2012 issuedby Ministry of
Corporate Affair.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carryingamount of the asset and are recognized inthe statement of profitand losswhen the asset isderecognized.

(ii) Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on fixed assetsisprovided on straight line method forthe period for which the assetshave been usedasunder:
1) Depreciation on assetsisprovided overthe useful life of assetsasprescribed under schedule IIof CompaniesAct, 2013.
2) Effective 1st April, 2014, the company depreciates its fixed assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II

of the Act, asagainst the earlier practice of depreciating atthe rates prescribed in schedule XIVof the CompaniesAct 1956.
3) Plant & machinery which have worked for more than single shift, depreciation is provided for accordingly as per rate

prescribed in schedule IIof the CompaniesAct, 2013.
4) Leaseholdland isamortised over the period of lease.

(iii) Intangible Assetsand Amortisation
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly
different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amortisation rates used are :

Asset
Computer Software
Copyrights

Period of Amortisation
6years
10years

(D) Impairment of Assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to
the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior
accounting period is reversed if there hasbeen achange in the estimate of recoverable amount.

(E) Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualified assets are capitalized as part of the
cost of the respective asset. The borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is being netted off against any income arising on
temporary investment of those borrowings. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

(F) Government Grants and Subsidy:
Special capital incentive and subsidy received from the government for setting up or expansion of an industrial undertaking in
undeveloped areaof state, iscredited to Specialcapital incentive and subsidy account under Capital ReserveAccount.

(G) Investments:
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified ascurrent investments. All other investments are classified aslong-term investments.

Long term investments are carried at cost. However provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. Current
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

investments are valued at cost ormarket valuewhichever is lower.

(f in lakh)

(H) Taxes:
Provision for tax is made for both current and deferred taxes. Provisions for current income tax (induding Wealth tax) is made at
current tax rates based on assessable income/wealth. The Company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing
difference resulting from the recognition of items in the financial statement and in estimating its current tax provision. Deferred tax
assets are recognized if there is a reasonable certainty of realisation. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognizedinthe Profit& loss Account inthe period inwhich it has been enacted.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised in acmrdance with the Guidance Note on "Accounti~ for credit

available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961" issued by ICAI. MAT credit is recognised as an
asset only when and to the extent there is convinci,. evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. At each balance sheet date the company re-assesses MAT credit assets to the extent they become reasonably certain or
virtually certain of realisation, asthe casemaybe and adjusts the sameaccordingly.

(I) Inventories:
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of
Inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective
present location and condition Cost of raw materials, stores & spares, packing materials are determined on weighted average
basis. However raw materials are written down to realisable value only if the cost of the related finished goods is not expected to
recover the cost of raw materials.

Work in - progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work in progress and finished
goods is determined on absorption costing method which include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Exciseduty is indueled inthe value of finished goods.

(J) Income IExpensesRecocnltion :
i) Domestic Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods from factory and Export Sales on transfer of significant risk & rewards of

ownership of suchgoods. Salesare disclosed net of salestaX/Value added tax, discounts and salesreturn asapplicabie.
ii} Income from Powergeneration isaccounted on the basisof certification ofGujarat Electricity DevelopmentAuthorlty.
iii) Commission expenses on sales (other than consignment sales) Is accounted on realisation of sales proceeds and commission

on consignment salesisaccounted on receiptafstatement of consignment sale.
iv] Rentalsandall other expenses in respect of leasedassetsare treated asrevenue expenditure.
v) The company accounts for exciseduty rebate. duty entitlements and focus benefits on exports on accrual basis.
vi) Interest income is recognizedon atime proportion basistaking into account the amount outstanding and the rateapplicable.
vii) Dividend income is recognizedwhen the right to receive dividend is established

(K) foreign currency & derivative transactions:
II Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date af the transaction.

Foreigncurrency monetary nemsare restated atthe rate asof the date of BalanceSheet.
ii) In case of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilities, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate on

the date of inception of a forward contract is recognised as income or expense and is amortised over the life of the contract.
Exchal"@:edifferences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of Profit and loss in the year in whkh they arise. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognised as income or expense for the
period. The objective of these derivative instruments is to reduce the risk or cost to the company and is not intended for trading or
speculation purposes.

iii) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and
loss account except in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets. in which case they are adjusted
to the carrying cost of such assets in line with notification dated 11th May, 2011 and further amended and issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

iv) Exposureon accountof 0-0S5 Currency swapsentered into bythe company is accounted on baslsof marktc market loses,If any.
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(L) Employees Benefits:

LonsTermEmployee Benefits:
(a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Provident Fund
The company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous
ProvisionsAct, 19521 which is a defined contribution plan and contribution paid or payableis recognizedas an expensein the
period inwhich servicesare rendered by the employee.

(b) Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity

The company has a defined benefit employee retirement scheme in the form of gratuity trust. The Trustees ot the scheme have
entrustedthe administrationof the related fund to the life InsuranceCorporationof India (Lie), Chargefor the year is determined
on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the balance sheet. Actuarial Gains I
Losses, if any are recognised in the statement of profit & loss. Contributions were deposited with the lIC based on intimation
received bythe company.

(~in lakh)

ji) LeaveEncashment
Provision for leaveencashment, which isadefined benefit, ismade basedon actuarial valuation done byan independent
agency of notified actuaries by using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial Gains I Losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit & loss.

iii) Superannuation
The Company has Superannuation Plan for its executives > a defined contribution plan. The Company makes annual contribution
of the covered employees' salary, subject to maximum of a 1 lakh per employee, for the executive opting for the benefit. The plan
is managed by a Trust and the funds are invested with Ufe Insurance Corporation of India under its Group Superannuation
Scheme. Annual contributions as specified under the Trust deed are paid to the Life Insurance Corporation of India and
recognisedasanexpenseof the year in which the liability is incurred.

Short TermEmployee Benefits:
Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during
which servicesare rendered by the employee

(M) Lease:
Lease agreements where the risk & rewards, incidents to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are
recognised as operating lease. Lease rent under operating lease are recognised in the profit & loss statement on straight line
basis.

(N) Research& Development:
Capital Expenditure for Research & Development is capitalised when commissioned and included in the fixed assets. Revenue
expenditure on Research& Development ischarged in the period inwhich it is incurred.

(0) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :
Provisions involved substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assetsare neither recognizednor disclosed in the financial statements.

(P) EarnlngperShare:
The company reports basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) in accordance with the Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Basic EPS has been
computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the accounting year. The diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity sharesoutstanding during the end oftheyear.

83



GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

(Q) SeCmentreportinc:
Identification ofsecments
The company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.

Allocation of common costs
Commonallocable costs are allocated to each segment accordingto the relative contribution of each segment to the total
common costs

Unallocated items
Unallocated items include general corporateincome and expense itemswhich are not allocated to any businesssegment.

Segment accountinc policies
The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the company asawhole.

(RI Cashandcashequivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash-flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with anoriginal maturity of three months orless.
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2 Share Capital: Asa.
31...(J3·2015

Asa.
31-03-2014

Authorized
1,500,000(March31, 2014 : 1,500,000)equity shares of ~ 10 each 150.00 150.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,333,333 {March31, 2014 : 1,333,333} Equity shares of ~ 10 each fully paid-up 133.33 133.33

133.33 133.33

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
(i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ~ 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share.
(ii) The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
(iii) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their share holding.

(b) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, is set out below:

Asa' Asa'
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

1,333,333 1,333,333
133.33 133.33

1,333,333 1,333,333
133.33 133.33

Equity Shares:
At the beginning
- Number of shares
- Amount

At the end
Number of shares

- Amount

{c} Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

As at 31-03-2015
No. of Shares % of Holding
81,666 6.12%
58,624 4.40%

As at 31-03-2014
No. of Shares % of Holding

Balance as at the end of the year

81,666 6.12%
88,464 6.63%

Asa. Asa'
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

53.30 53.30

0.01 0.01

41.67 41.67

3.08 3.08
0.05
3.13 3.08

98.11 98.06

6,009.32 5,009.32
1,000.00

6,009.32 6,009.32

Mrs. Meera Philip
Enarjee Consultancy &Trading Co LlP

3 Reserves and Surplus:

Capital reserve
Special capital incentive and subsidy
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Securities Premium account
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Excessof Share in Net Assets of subsidiary company
Balance as per last Balance sheet
Add: Adjustment for additional shares purchased
Total Excessof Share in Net Assets of subsidiary company
Balance as at the end of the year

General Reserve
Balance as at beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss account
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Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at beginning of the year
Profit for the year
Amount available for appropriation
less: Appropriations:

Interim dividend
Dividend I Final dividend
Total dividend
Di....idend tax
Amount transferred to general reserve
Transitional provision for: Depreciation charge

: Deferred tax on above

4,345.81
887.18

4,510.81
1,084.59

5,232.99 5,595.40

150.00
20.00
193.33

150.00
30.54

213.33
36.26

1,000.00
28.23
(9.60)

Total appropriations
Balance as at end of the yea'

199,17 1,249.59
5,033.12 4,345.81

Total reserve. and surplus 11,141.25 10,453.19

4 Long Term Borrowings:
A... A... As at As at

J1iEt291$ 31jD3-Z01431§-2015 31*2014
CUrrent Maturity NotH:urrent portion

Secured:
Term loans from Banks:
Foreign Currency loans from Banks

Rupee loans from Banks

Total Secured Borrowings

Unsecured:
Loans from Banks
Deferred SalesTax payments

Total Unsecured Borrowlnls

Amount disclosed under the head "Other current liabilities"
(refer note 10 )

866.95 977.56

564.17 564.17

1,431.12 1,501.73

1.24 9.49
3.08 6.41

4.32 15.90
1,435.44 1,557,63

(1.435.44) (1,557.63)

565.46 1,371.59

480.00 1,044.17

1,045.46 2,415.76

1.24
0.73 3.80

0.73 5.04
1,046.19 2,420.80

1,046.19 2,420.80Tota1lonl-term borrowinp

A Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowlnp:
1 Rupee loan from HDFCBank Ltd.of'324.17lakhs (Mareh 31, 2014:' 648.35 lakhs) for factory (Phase I) at Chinc:hoIi,Solapur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assetsof the Company located at Chincholi, Solapur, both present and future and
by way of mortgage of Land together with factory building and structures situated at Chincholi factory, Sotapur.

gepavabte in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from June 20, 2011, along with interest of 13% p.a.

2 Rupee loan from HDFCBank Ltd.of' 720.00 lakhs (March 31. 2014 :, 960.00 lakhs) for Factory (Phase II) at Chlncholl. Sol.pur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assetsof the Company located at Chincholi, Solapur, both present and future and
by way of mortgage of land together with factory building and structures situated at Chincholi factory, 5olapur.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from April 30, 2013, along with Interest of 13% p.a.

3 Forei,n currency loan from HDFCBankLtd.of' Nil (March 31, 2014:f 51.69lakhsl for Wind Millproject.
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets,both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills receivables and
entire movable fixed assetsand mortgage of Immovable fixed assetsof the Company.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly Instalments beginning from February 5,2010, along with interest of 5% p.a.
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4 Foreign ~l,Irrenq' loin from HDFCBank Ltd.off NIL (March 31, 2014:'r 9S.73Iakhs) for Kurla Office. premises at Mumbal
Firstexclusivecharge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, includinginventories, book debts, billsreceivables and
entire movable fixed assetsand mortgage of immovable fixed assetsof the Company.

Repayablein 60 equal monthly instalments beginning from February 5, 2010, along with interest of 5 % p.a.

5 Foreign currency loan from HDFCBank Ltd.of'r 113.011akhs (March 31, 2014: r 216.42 lakhs) for Kurla Office II premises at Mumbai
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets,both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills receivables and
entire movable fixed assetsand mortgage of immovable fixed assetsof the Company.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from September 20, 2011 along with interest of 8 % p.a.

6 Foreign currency loan from Citi Bank, N.A. of t' 1,319.40 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 1,98S.31Iakhs) for Perundurai factory, in Tamil Nadu
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire movable fixed assetsof the Company located at Perundurai, Tamilnadu, both present and future
and by way of mortgage of Land together with factory building and structures situated at Perundurai, Tamilnadu.

Repayable in 15equal quarterly instalments beginning from April 22, 2013 along with interest @ 5.61%p.a.

8 Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowines:
1Deferred sales-tax payments
Deferred sales-tax payment is interest free loan and repayable from financial year 2006-07 to 2016-17.

2 Loansfrom Bank
Vehicle loans are secured by vehicles under hypothecation with banks.
Loansare repayable in 36 monthly instalments from the date of respective loans.

Deferred Tax liabilities
- Depreciation
- Gratuity (Expensesallowable for tax purposes when paid)

Asat Asat
31 -z 1 1 -z 1

2,419.27 2,497.36
19.69 28.11

',438.96 2,526.07

44.27 46.24
44.27 46.24

2,394.69 2,479.83

Asat Asat
31-03-2014

10.00 10.00

10.00 10.00

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net):

Deferred Tax Assets
- Provision for employee benefit

Total deferred tax liabilities (net)

6 Other Long-term liabilities:

Security deposit received against the rental income

Total other long-term liabilities

Provision for Employees Benefit expenses:
Provisionfor Leaveencashment

Asat Asat
31-01-2015 31-01-2014

Current Maturity

12.19 10.40

2.97
15.16 10.40

98.66 74.34
113.82 84.74

(113.82) (84.74)

As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

7 lonB-term Provisions:

Non-current portion

68.12 43.49

Provision for Gratuity payment
68.12 43.49

Mark to market provision an derivative instruments 62.42 121.37
130.54 164.86

Amount disclosed under the head "Short-term provisions"
(refer note 11 )

Total Long-term provisions 130.54 164.86
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NOTES TO CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in Iskh)

8 Short-term Borrowlncs: Au' Au'

Secured:
Worldn. Capital Loan payable on demand from banks
ForeignCurrency Loan
Rupee loan

3.598.70
580.96

3,674.08
224.52

4.179.66 3,898.60
443.86Buyer'scredit In forel," currency loan

Unsecured:
Deposits from Public
Deposits from Others 60.45

117.00
60.45

60.45
TotalShort-termborrowinp 4,240.11 4.519.91
(a) Working capital Loan from HDfC Bank Ltd off 2738.32 lakhs (March 31. 2014 :f 2,86S,81Iakhs)

First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bUls receivables and
entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of Immovable fixed assets of the Company.

(b)Worklnl capital loan from CftI BankN.A.of' 1,441,.35 lakhs (March31, 2014:" 1,032.79lakhs,
Securedby first pari passu charge In favour of CIt! BankN,A, by way of hypothecation of entire current assets lncludmg lnventorles and suchother
movables, books debts, bills receivables and second subservient charce on entire movable fixed assetsand mortgace of Immovable fixed assetsof the
Company, both present and future,

(c) Buyer's aedlt In foretcn currency loan from HDFCBank Ltd oft NIL (March 31. 2014:f 443.86lakhs) for capital Goods.
Securedby exclusivecharge on an imported recycling machine and all related equlpments at Panol! factory, Repayable In one instalment due on
August 08, 2014,

(dl Deposits from Public (unsecured) carry interest @ 12.50%p.a. and Deposits from Others (unsecured) carry interest @)12.QO%p.a.with maturity period
of 12 months from the date of deposit.

(el FixedDeposits includes deposit accepted from the related parties of t' NIL(March 31, 2014 : t 73.25 lakhs).

9 TradePayables: An.
11...Q3-2015

Au'
31..Q3·2014

Trade payabies 2,035.31 1,877.93

Total trade payables Z,035.31 1,877.93

Detailsof Micro and Small Enterprises asdefined under Micro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006(-MSMEO Act").
To comply with the requirement of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, the Company requested its suppliers to confirm it
whether they are covered asMicro, Small or Medium enterprise as is defined In the said Act. Basedon the communication received from such suppliers
confirming their coverageas suchenterprise, the company has recognized them for the necessarytreatment as provided under the Act, from the date of
receipt of suchconfirmations and are disclosed in note below.

A...
11-D}-1'!15

'sa'
31-91'291'

a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMEOAct and remainin, unpaid asat the year end. 168.74
b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMEOAct and Remainingunpaid at the year end.
c) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMEOAct, beyond the appointed day during the year.
d) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMEDAct, to suppliers registered under the MSMEOAct, beyond the

appointed day during the year.
e) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMEDAct, to suppliers registered under the MSMEDAct, beyond the appointed

day during the year.
fJ Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMEOAct, for payments already made
gJ Further Interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

116.17

Theabove information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises hasbeen determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basisof
information availablewith the Company.
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GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTESTO CONSOLIOATEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in lakh)

(a) Addition to fixed assetsand capital work-in-progress includes exchangedifference of ~ 83.63 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : f 431.83 lakhs)arising on
revaluation of foreign currency term loan and principal only swap rupee loans (POS)asper amendedAS1l (notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs).

(b) Additions during the year and capital work-In-progress include f 28.90 lakhs (March 31, 2014: f 15.74Iakhs) being borrowing cost capitalised.
(e) Interest earned on account of Principle only SWAP(POS) loan amounting to ~ 41.20 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 59.64 lakhs) hasbeen reduced from the cost of

the respective assets
(d) In accordancewith the provisions of Schedule II of the Act, in caseof fixed assetswhich havecompleted their useful life asat 1st April, 2014, the carrying value

(net of residual value) amounting to t 18.63 lakhs (net of deferred tax of ~ 9.60 lakhs] as a transitional provision hasbeen recognisedin the RetainedEarnings
_Further, in caseof assetsacquired prior to 1st April 2014, the carrying value of assets(net of residual value) is depreciated over the remaining useful life as
determined effective 1stApril, 2014

_Depreciation and amortization expensesfor the year would have been lower by ~ 231.47 lakhs,had the company continued with the previous assessment

of useful life of suchassets.
(e) Vehiclesinclude one car of the company acquired in the nameof Director.

Total long-term loans and advances

As at ., .t
31-03-2015 31-93-2014

0.85 0.85

12.90 12.90
44.75 29.25

58.50 43.00

.,,, .,,,
1 -20 1 3-2 14

18.40 102.80
272.73 265.40

3.89 2.71
372.59 432.95

667.61 803.86

13 Non-current Investments:

Long term Investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Others (Quoted):
5,000 (l,OOO) equity sharesof~ 2/- (~ 10/-) each fully paid up held in Bankof Baroda
{Market Value~ 8,16,500/- (March 31, 2014 : ~ 720,750/-))

Other Investments (unquoted)
129,000 (March 31, 2014 : 129,000) equity sharesof 't 10/- eachfully paid up held in Bharuch teo-aqua Infrastructure Ltd,
4,47,500 (March 31, 2014 : 292,500) equity sharesof ~ 10/- each fully paid up held in Iris EcopowerVenture Pvt. Ltd.

Total non-current Investment

14 Long-term Loansand Advances:

Advancesfor Capital Expenditure
Other Advances& Deposits
PrepaidExpenses
MATcredit entitlement

Other advances& deposits include deposit of ~ NIL (March 31, 2014 : ~ 15.75 lakhs)with a company in which some of the directors are interested.

Prepaidexpensesinclude current maturity amount of ~ 57.22 lakhs (March 31, 2014: ~ 59.04 lakhs) (refer note no. 20)
Consideringthe future profitability and taxable positions in the subsequent years,the company has recognisedthe "MAT credit entitlement"
asan assetby crediting profit and lossaccount for an equivalent amount and disclosedunder "loans and Advances" in
accordancewith the GuidanceNote on "Accounting for credit available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax" issuedby ICAI.

long term Depositwith Bank (Maturity more than 12 months)
Total other non-current assets

1.42
1.42

23.16
23.16

15 Other non-current assets:
.,,,

31-03-2015

.,,,
31-03-2014

FixedDepositwith Bankinclude deposit of~ 0.25 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ~ 0.23 lakhs) lien with the Maharashtra SalesTaxDepartment .
.,ot .,,,

31-93-201416 Current Investments: 31-03-2015

Unquoted
7 yearsNational5avings Certificates (Deposited with Central ExciseAuthority) 0.08 0.08

Total current Investments 0.08 0.08

17 Inventories:
As at

31.Q3-2015

.,,,
31-93-2014

Storesand Spares
PackingMaterials
RawMaterials (includesRubberScrap,Processoils and Chemicals)
Fuelmaterials
FMSlicence Stocks(at net realisablevalue)
Goods-in-process
Goods-in-transit
FinishedGoods

136.30
46.64

1,342.57
13.53
10.11

242.41
386.64
826.93

124.89
45.30

1,648.73
20.32
16.06
191.69
398.17
881.01

Total Inventories 3,005.13 3,326.17

90



~6

lE'Stl86'l1E
lE"E

lE'Stl,,'60£
ai-'ft5S'L61
torZI5t'9
DL"6t196'501
itoz=tiFit510HCFtt
"....'''V
9B'9Z9lO'IE"

tr9
98'9l9lI'tZt
99'S1'(StPl!!1O"'9V6'Zl,
to'65ZZ'lS
ilZ'EOl6O'1>ZI
6"181't
6£"IE

"....

(laN)Pe.J1UO)p.lI!MJO;l)(iU0:l
(w!ep~!nleJ9JJllwOJjalqeAt~all

aWO)ulpanJ))"

:vtOl'tE4jJe~)sy~el8Z'Sft'E~SUO!SllloJdjOlaN•xel'41leaM'8xel-aWOJUIeaue...pv
sasuadx3P!edaJdJO~!JnleWlUilJJn)

aspx311!J1UaJ1I1lMllSoda(]
n!sodao"2silJuel\PYJa410

purl!utJOlis!?:)U!ilrql!JaAO:>aJSiI:lUeApv

:sa3UeApypuesueG')WJa'-lJo4SOl

68'HZ

StOZ'ED"tE11!51!pun:lUOIPalOJdpueu0lte:mp3J01S.MUI01pallpaJjeq01BUIPuelSlnopueanpsaunoweOU.lJeaJiIYl
:sa'ON

at'Stl
LO'S

aauejeqlIueqpue4S.,l'lO!
.Q~uapallOJ1UmAI,UIOrulaJl!LlS

1,,'Ell
(S41UOWZIUI!41SS311nqs4luoVljEueYl'!JOWAlpnlew)saunccoel!sodaQpax!:tUI-

simlejeB'1ueaJa\lW
~E"tEll6"llt
~£"l
rztr

l£"lt
ssn

Sl!sodapAauowUI8JeW-
(MOlaqalONJaja1:l)SlUnO;);)!!puaplAIPpawlepUn-

snmoooepa)!JewJ!!aUI(a)
(541UOW£ueqrssalAlpnlew)siunomel!sodapUI(pi

uunccce)::133UI1;)1
nuno;))!!l!paJ)4SI!)ulIq)

nuno;)~luaJJn)UIIe)
queqIRIMa:lUflea

pue4uo4Sl!)
QUall!A!nb34s£:)'I~se:t

ZS"S6
lS"OS
~L"~S
~£"st

9£"S19"5

"'""....
:sa)ul!I1!8'1ueB'I~Sl!l6t

SSO£66'"9'l"Sto'S
®"££o's(6£"OUa10UJajaJ)po09pCUap!5uOJ-

SJa4lO
90'.
{lro)
fl'.

{ll'O)
[O·tt

slqapInJlqnop18peqJOjUO!S!AOJd:55a1

l1"O
90'.

l1"O
98"Ot

InJlqnoapaJapiSUO)
P009paJap!suo)

541UOWXISue41<JJOWJOj8UIPuI!lslno
p;unJaSUn

"....'''V
SIOZ'H)IIIIWlSlE030N311113A3H1IIO~SlN3W31ll1S1If»NIINI~031ll01l0SNO)01S310N

3AI.1IS0d.1:>Yd~1

C3J.IWlld~E)



GRP LIMITED IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in lakh)

"

Year ended
31-93-2015

34,638.21
1,148.01

Total: 33,490.20

66.25
33,556.45

32536.44
575.50
378.26

66.25

Year ended
!I-03-2015

390.54

0.02
390.56

Year ended
31-03-2015

15.83
22.36

669.43
0.11

707.73

Year ended
31-03-2015

1,648.73
17,464.74
19,113.47
1,342.57

17,770.90

16,127.87
1,093.51
549.51

17,770.90

613.63
3.45"

17,157.27
96.55%

17,770.90

Year ended
31-93-291422 Revenue:

til Sale of products
Manufactured goods
Less: Excise duty

31,455.84
1,125.25

(ii) Trading of Goods
(iii) Powergeneration from Windmill

30,330.59
2.55

68.85

Total revenue
30,401.99

Manufactured Goods I Power Generation I Trading
Reclaim Rubber
Punch& Split Products
Thermo Plastic Elastomers
Trading of Goods
Powergeneration from Windmill

29,222.19
630.69
477.71

2.55
68.85

23 Other operating Income:
Year ended
31-93-2014

Export incentives
Bad debts recovered
Other Sales
Total other operating Income

434.47
4.29

38.40
477.16

24 Other income:
Yearended
31-0)·2014

Interest received
Rent Income
Net Gainon foreign currency transactions and translation.
Other Income

19.28
10.80

175.20
0.33

Total other Income 205.61

25 Cost of material consumed:
Yearended
31-03·2014

Raw material consumed:
Opening inventories
Add: Purchases(including incidental expensesof ~ 672.34 lakhs, March 31, 2014 : ~ 693.48 lakhs)

1,644.49
14,644.64

less: Closing inventories

16,289.13
1,648.73

Total cost of material consumed 14,640.40

(a) Products consumed
Waste Rubber
ProcessOils
Other Oils and Chemicals •

13,036.47
1,440.87
163.06

14,640.40

"

826.28
5.64"

13,814.12
94.36%

(b) Import and Indigenous consumptions
Imports

Indigenous

14,640.40
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~in lakh)

26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade Year ended
3i-03-iOi5

Yearended
1 Z 14

Slock at the end of the year:
Finished goods
Goods-in-transit (Finished Goods)
Work-In-progress
Stock-in-trade

826.93
386.64
242.41

881.01
398.17
191.69

Total (AI 1,455.98 1,470.87
Stock at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods
Goods-in-transit (Finished Goods)
Work-In-progress
Stock-in-trade

881.01
398.17
191.69

928.47
244.86
176.71
4.23

Total (B) 1,470.87 1,354.27
Increase I (Oecrease) in Stock Total (A· B) (14.89) 116.60

Finished Goods
Reclaim Rubber
Punch & Split Products
Thermo Plastic Elastomers

1,022.75
93.96
96.85

1,168.05
63.92
47.22

1,213.56 1,279.19
Work-In-progress
- Reclaim Rubber 242.41 191.69

242.41 191.69

27 Employee Benefits expenses: Year ended
3H)3-2015

Yearended
31-03-2014

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident fund and Pension fund
Gratuity fund
Contribution to other funds
Welfare and other benefits

3,921.70
168.21
35.86
71.38
146.61

3,234.21
141.52
(0.99)
70.49
106.48

Total employee benefits expenses 4,343.76 3,551.71

28 Finance costs: Year ended
31"'()3-2015

Yearended
31"'()3-2014

Interest on Term & Working Capital Loans
Interest on Other Loans
Financial Charges

422.68
9.04
64.19

593.78
25.13
77.07

Total finance cost 495.91 695.98

29 Depreciation and Amortization expenses: Year ended
31-03·2015

Year ended
31-03-2014

Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Depreciation on Intangible Assets

1,452.70
19.34

1,226.45
17.97

Total depreciation and amortization expenses 1,472.04 1,244.42
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GRP LIMITED

237.30
28.31

250.86
14.92

IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~ in lakh)

)0 Other expenses:
Year ended
31·03-2015

Year ended
31-03-2014

Manufacturing Expenses
Packing Material consumed
Stores and Spare Parts Consumed
Power, Fuel&Water Consumed:-

Power Consumption
- Fuel Consumption
- Water Consumption

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses:­
Plant & Machineries

- Factory Buildings

813.55
430.66

772.53
419.88

3,570.21
892.61
44.51

3,310.76
901.08
43.67

Sales & Distribution expenses
Ocean Freight
Marine Insurance
Export clearing and Other charges
local freight & Other charges
Other Selling and Distribution expenses

6,017.16

1,485.41
6.83

432.67
615.21
89.23

5,713.70

1,597.38
6.40

437.02
499.24
129.04

Administration & Other Expenses
Insurance
Vehicle Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Advertisements
Rent, lease Rent &Other Charges
Repairs to Other Assets
Retainer fees, legal fees & Prof charges
Travelling & Conveyance
Postage, Telegram & Telephones
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Payment to Auditors:-

Audit fee
Tax Audit fee
Taxation matters and other expenses
Reimbursement of expenses

Board Meeting Fees
Commission to Director
Charity and donation
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Factory I Office Expenses
Office electricity expenses
Other Expenses
loss on Sale of Assets j Assets Discarded jlmpairment
Variation in CEOon Stock of finished goods

2,629.35

51.30
88.14
35.02
14.61
28.26
44.88
159.42
172.37
57.22

2,669.08

57.14
77.33
11.49
15.77
28.60
51.60
143.35
133.73
44.26
0.17

7.08
2.25
5.91
0.21
5.44
12.00
0.02
55.96
43.49
15.02

138.26
0.53

(8.62)

6.09
1.50
2.32
0.20
5.83
20.75
32.65

35.13
14.67
146.41
86.42
(7.77)

928.80 907.64

Total other expenses 9,575.31 9,290.42

31 Contingent Uabilitiesand commitments (to the extend not provided for):
An.

31-03-W15
An'

31-93-W14

(a) Guaranteed by Banksnot provided for (Net)
(b) letter of Credit
(c) Claimsagainst the company (Including Salestax, Exciseduty, etc.I not acknowledged asdebts

- Maharashtra SalesTax
- ExciseDuty & ServiceTax
-tnccme Tax liability

(d) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account.
(e) Employeesdues not provided for

266.90
16.60

267.93

0.74
196.31
635.77
35.48

0.52
168.40
69.00
75.37
0.25

94



GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSiTiVE:

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 201S (~ in lakh)

32 Disclosure in respect of Lease: As at
31-03-2015

As at
31-03-2014

Operating lease
The company has entered into lease agreement for four vehicles taken on operating lease for a term of 48 months. The future
minimum leasepayments under non cancellable operating leaseare as under
(a) Not later than 1year
(b) later than i year but not later than 5 years
(e) later than 5 years

16.15
24.37

13.27
31.21

33 Related parties disclosure: As at As at

A) Relationships
1) KeyManagerial Personnel

RajendraV Gandhi; Managing Director
Harsh RGandhi; Executive Director
Ganesh A Ghangurde; President, Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

2) Relatives of KeyManagerial Personnel and Entities over which significant influence is exercised by key management
Personnel or their relatives and with whom transactions have taken place in the ordinary course of business
Navna R.Gandhi, HarshR. Gandhi, Hemal H. Gandhi, valshall R. Gandhi, Nehal R.Gandhi, Mahesh V. Gandhi, Harish V. Gandhi,
Mrudula JShah,RekhaA Kothari, Devyani CTcfia, VarshaH Shah,ChandrikaA Kumbhani and Anant G.Ghangurde
RajendraV. Gandhi HUF(Rajendra V. Gandhi is Karta)
AaravTrust (RajendraV. Gandhi & Harsh R.Gandhi are the Trustees)
Aayushi & AashniTrust (RajendraV.Gandhi & Harsh R.Gandhi are the Trustees)
Nehal Trust (RajendraV.Gandhi & HarshR. Gandhi are the Trustees)
HarshR.Gandhi HUF(Harsh R. Gandhi is Karta),
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Company LlP (Rajendra V. Gandhi & Harsh R.Gandhi are the Designated Partners)
Industrial Development and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. (RajendraV. Gandhi is Director)
Ghatkopar Estate& FinanceCorporation Pvt. Ltd. (Rajendra V.Gandhi is Director)
Alphanso Netsecure Pvt. ltd. (Harsh R.Gandhi and GaneshA. Ghangurde are the Directors)
Grip Suryarecycling LlP (Jointly controlled entity of subsidiary company (Grip Polymers Ltd.))

0) Related PartiesTransactions As at
31-03-2015

As at
31-03-2014

11 Summary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business
A) KeyManagement Personnel

Remuneration paid
Dividend paid

273.57
11.62

280.51
13.14

8) Relatives of KeyManagerial Personnel and Entities over which significant influence is
exercised by key management personnel or their relatives.
Purchaseof goods & Services
Remuneration paid
Sitting FeesPaid
Dividend paid
Interest paid
Rent paid
Deposit repaid
Deposit outstanding payable
Deposit outstanding receivable
investment in capital account of Partnership Firm

.!l Summary of transactions with related parties other than ordinary transactions
Saleof Fiat
Saleof Furniture

C) Disclosurein respect of transactions whichare more than 10%of the total transactions of the same
type with the related parties duringthe year
1 Purchaseof Goods& Services

Alphanso Netsecure Private Limited

16.27
6.12 5.59
0.75 0.75

52.83 61.65
0.79 10.34
0.18 0.54

77.25 6.00
77.25
15.75

45.92

600.00
65.00

16.27
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2 Remuneration Paid
Rajendra V Gandhi
Harsh RGandhi
GaneshA Ghangurde

82.37
119.28
71.93

3 Sitting Fees Paid
Mahesh V Gandhi 0.75 0.75

4 Dividend paid
Harsh RGandhi
Mahesh V Gandhi
Rajendra V Gandhi HUF
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Company LLP

8.34
10.73
6.78
8.50

5 Interest paid
Nehal RGandhi
Aayushi & Aashni Trust
Aarav Trust
Nehal Trust

0.09
0.12
0.10
0.17

(~ in lakh)

95.90
89.40
95.21

9.49
12,77
7.71
14.60

1.23
1.44
1.48
2.13

6 Rent paid
Industrial Development and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.

8.50
11.50
10.00
17.00

15.75

600.00

65.00

Au' Aut
31-03-2015 31..Q3-2D14

301.78 225.11
327.93

7.04 38.98
217.10 75.62

0.18

7 Deposit repaid
Nehal RGandhi
Aayushi & Aashni Trust
AaravTrust
Nehal Trust

8.50
11.50
10.00
17.00

8 Deposit outstanding payable
Nehal RGandhi
Aayushi & Aashni Trust
AaravTrust
Nehal Trust

9 Deposit outstanding receivable
Industrial Development and Investment Co. Pvt. ltd.

10 Sale of Flat
Rajendra V Gandhi

11 Sale of Furniture
Rajendra V Gandhi

34 Research & Development Expenditure:

Accounting for Research& Development expenditure incurred:
(a) Capital Expenditure incurred on Equipments & Machinery (includes ~ 38.981akhs Capital work in progress

of last year now capitalised)
(b) Capital Expenditure incurred on Buildings, Furniture & office equipments
(c) Capital Work in Progress
(d) Revenue Expenditure Incurred towards the R&D Projects

The sales income of~ 0.37 lakhs from sale of Pilot plant trial material has been included in Sales revenue and above expenditure is debited to respective

head of accounts.

0.54

1.50

2.00
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35 Segment Reporting: As.,
31-03-2015

As.,
31-03-2014

Segment reporting as required by Accounting Standard 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
1 Segment Revenue

a) Reclaim Rubber (Net of Excise Duty) '"
b) Power

33,111.94
66.25

c) Others ••
Net Segment Revenue
• Reclaim Rubber includes crumb rubber, punch & split products
•• Others includes Thermo Plastic Elastomers & Trading Goods

2 Segment Results Profit(+) I Loss(-) before Tax and interest
from each segment)
a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
Sub Total

378.26

29,852.87
68.85

480.26
30,401.9833,556.45

2,571.48
36.21

(302.30)
2,305.39

3,576.54
26.18

(49.89)
3,552.83

less: Interest, Un-allocable expenditure & Un-allocable Income (net of expenses) 1,202.30
1,778.40Profit Before Tax & Extra Ordinary Item

less: Extra Ordinary Item
Profit Before Tax
Provision for Taxation:
-Income Tax
- Deferred Tax
Profit After Tax

3 Other Information
I Segment Assets
a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Un-allocated Assets
e) Total

1,103.09

1,103.09

291.47
(75.56)
887.18

19,287.64
268.47

1,153.68
2,837.04

23,546.83
II Segment Liabilities

a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Un-allocated liabilities
e) Total

4,970.60
1.06

98.08
7,202.55

12,272.29
III Capital Expenditure (Including Capital Work in Progress)

a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Unallocable
e) Total

1,426.82
0.14

497.66
29.83

1,954.45
IV Depreciation

a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Unallocable
e) Total

1.284.63
14.69
60.48
112.23

1,472.03

1,774.43

1,778.40

297.84
396.01

1,084.55

20,612.13
286.69
806.06

2,544.43
24,249.31

6,658.77
52.66
83.64

6,867.72
13,662.79

1,114.38
8.90

321.49
64.41

1,509.18

1,101.82
27.22
21.12
94.26

1,244.42

0.53 81.67
V Non Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation

a) Reclaim Rubber
b) Power
c) Others
d) Unallocable
e) Total 0.53

0.17
4.75

86.59
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GRP LIMITED
IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015 (~in lakh)

Net profit after tax for the year
Excess Provision for tax for earlier years
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders
Number of equity sharesof ~ 10/- each.
Earnings per share - Basic
Earnings per share -Diluted

38 Eamingsper share:

887.18
1,333,333

66.54
66.54

1,084.58
1,333,333

81.34
81.34

Other Notes

39 Duringthe year a sumof U$D6.38lakhs equivalent to ~ 398.98 lakhsbeingreceivablefrom adebtor hasbeen remitted away by the customer to an account
other than that of the company by fraudulent means. The company has lodged a FIRwith Police department and has also taken up the matter with the
customer,and is hopeful of recoveringfull amount, hencethe same is not treated asdoubtful and no provision is made in the accountsfor the same.

40 The companyhaspaid eommissionto an independent Non ExecutiveDirectorwhich ismore by "t llakh than 1%of net profit and the samehasbeen recovered
from him during the current FinancialYear.

41 Exceptionalitems representsprofit on saleof residential flat including furniture and fixtures to the ManagingDirector of the company.

42 Expensesdebited to Profit & loss account include prior period expenses~ 33.32 lakhs(March 31, 2014 : ~ 14.71Iakhs)

43 Closingstockof FinishedGoodsinclude exciseduty of ~ 82.141akhs(March 31, 2014 : ~ 90.76 lakhs)

44 Duringthe yearGRIPPolymerslimited, a subsidiaryof the companyhasentered into Joint Venture agreement with Gripsurya recycling llP henceproportionate
share in the jointly controlled entity hasbeen consolidated for the first time in the current financial year.

4S In the opinion of the Board,the Current Assets,Loans& Advancesare approximately of the value stated, if realised,in the ordinary courseof the
business.The provisionfor depreciation and for all known liabilities is adequateand not in excessof the amount reasonablynecessary.

46 Previousperiod figures havebeen regrouped and recastwherever necessaryto conform to the current year classification

Theaccompanyingnotesare an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our Reportof evendate

Forand on behalf of the Boardof Directors

ForA. B. Modi &Associates
CharteredAccountants
ICAIFirmRegistrationno. 106473W

RajendraV Gandhi
Managing Director

RajeshS.Shah
Partner
Membership no. 017844

HarshRGandhi
ExecutiveDirector

GaneshA Ghangurde
President& Chief FinancialOfficer &
CompanySecretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2015
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